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City of Morristown

Incorporated 1855

November 30, 2014
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the City of Morristown:

State law requires that ali general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of each
year g complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive
Anmnual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Morristown for the fiscal year ended - June 30, 2014.

This report consists of management’s representations concemning the finances of the City of Morristown.
Consequently, management assumes tull responsibility for the compleieness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City of Morristown has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City of Morristown’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP,
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Morristown’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material

respects,

The City of Morristown’s financial statements have been audited by Craine, Thompson, and Jones, PC, a
firm of licensed certified public aceountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Morristown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering
an unqualified opinion that the City of Morristown’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Morristown was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements requirc the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards, These reports are available in the
compliance report section of this CAFR.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial staterents in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in




conjunction with it. The City of Morristown’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFQA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to City of Morristown for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an casily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This reporl must satisty both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certifieate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We bclieve that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to mect the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Profile of the Government

The City of Morristown was incorporated in 1855 and operates under a council-administrator form of
government. It is located between two major Tennessee Valley Authority lakes approximately 40 miles
northeast of Knoxville on Intcrstate-81 and approximately 60 miles southwest of the Tri-Cities area on the
same highway. The City currently occupies a land arca of approximately 22 square miles and serves a
population of approximately 25,000. The City is authorized by state statues to levy a property tax on both
real and personal properties located within its boundarics. 1t is also empowered by state statute to extend
its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the Couneil.

Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the Mayor and Council members consisting of the
mayor and six other members. The Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances,
resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Administrator, City Attorney,
Police Chief, and Fire Chief. The City’s Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City and for appointing the heads
of various departments,

The City of Morristown provides a full range of services, including police, fire, street construction and
maintenance, planning and zoning, patks and recreation, eultural events and general administrative services.
In addition, water, electric and sewer service and solid waste collection are provided under an Enterprise
fund concept with user charpes established by the Council to ensurc adequate coverage of operating
expenses and payments on outstanding debt.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Morristown’s financial planning and control.
All departments of the City of Morristown are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City
Administrator. The City Administrator uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed
budget. The City Administrator then presents this proposed budget to the Council for review by May 15.
The Council is required o hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later
than June 30, the close of the City of Morristown’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by
fund, function, and department. The City Administrator may make transfers of approptiations within a
department. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report. The general fund comparison is
presented on page 23 as part of the basic financial statements for the City’s fund.




Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information pref%ented in the ﬁ]_lancial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from
the broader perspective of the specific envirenment within which the City of Morristown operates.

Local economy

The economy continues to have an impact on every segment of Morristown’s largest taxpayers, especially
the automotive industry, Morristown has many manufacturers that are tied to this industry, Th’ey produce
automofive pmduc‘ts fn'r many different type of brands but principally Toyota, Manufacturing continues
to make up the majority of property tax assessments for the City of Momistown. The breakdown between
commercial and residential is 68% and 32% respectively. Morristown did see improvement in local sales
tax as we had the previous year. Sales tax increased 2.5% from the previous year. The majority of the
increase can be attributed to completion of a road project on a major route in the City. Also there were
addition of a franchise restaurant chain to the economy.

Major Initiatives

Morristown’s industry continues to see improvement and plans for expansion. Three additional expansions
have been scheduled to go with the expansions of two plants in the previous year. Also there are two retail
developments that has begun placing clients. One of those stores is a major retail chain that will be open
February 2015. The City of Morristown and the Industrial Development Board continue to tecrait new
industry and support expansion of our existing industry. One main effort is the acquisition of property for
the East Tennessee Progress Center to provide available land for possible expansion for business recruiting.

Acknowledgment

The preparation of the CAFR could not have been accomplished without the efforts and dedication of the
staff of the Department of Finance. We would like to express our appreciation to the Finance staff and
other personnei from various departments, agencies, and authorities that assisted in the preparation. Also
we would like to thank the Mayor and Council for their gridance and support, ‘

Respectfully submitted,
Tony Cox
City Administrator Administrative Services Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morristown, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Marristown, Tennessee, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coflectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of Morristown Utilities Commission, which represent 96 percent, 97 percent, and 98 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the business-type activities. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for Morristown Utilities Commission, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolter General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opiniocn on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the
reascnableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

n our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown,
Tennessee, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and solid waste fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America.

JAMES W. CRAINE, CPA
GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA
MiRA J. CRAINE, CPA

HIRAM H. JONES, CPA
TERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, pension schedule of funding progress, and OPEB schedule of funding progress and
schedule of employer contributions on pages 9-16 and 89 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmentat Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Morristown, Tennessee’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individuai
nenmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary schedules, schedule of state financial assistance,
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary schedules, schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, and schedule of state financial assistance are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion,
hased on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary schedules, schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, and schedule of state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 21, 2014,
on our consideration of the City of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control over financiat reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and nof to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

b, Siongrons 4 Jonsn, 14

Morristown, Tennessee
November 21, 2014




Management’s Discussion & Analysis

As management of the City of Morristown, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014, Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that is furnished in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1- 3 of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Morristown exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by approximately $173 million (net position), an increase of nearly $12 million during FY
2014,  Of this amount, $49 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of just over $26 million, an increase of almost $1.1 mitlion from
the prior year,

* The City of Morristown’s total long-term debt decreased by $18,869,872 during the current fiscal
year. The General Fund’s long-term debt decreased by $1,109,361.

e The City of Morristown’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $25,712,009 on June 30,
2014.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City of Morristown’s financial statements.
The basic financial statements consist of three parts: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund
financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Morristown’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Morristown’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Morristown is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only resuit in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxed and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Morristown that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Morristown include general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, and culture and
recreation. The business-type activities include the power, water, storm water, broadband and wastewater
systems. Of the business-type activities, the Morristown Utilities Commission is responsible for water,
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power, wastewater and broadband. The Morristown Utilities Commission is an administrative unit of the
City and therefore has been included as a business-type activity of the primary government. The
Morristown Utilities Commission issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report and
information from that report is used in this report. Readers should consult the Morristown Utility
Commission’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for more detailed information on their finances.

The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 17 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Morristown, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Morristown can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Morristown maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the solid waste fund, both of which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Morristown adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 19 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Morristown maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enierprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Morristown uses enterprise funds to account for its water, wastewater,
storm water, broadband and power systems.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for wastewater,
water, power and broadband systems, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City of
Morristown. The storm water system is not considered to be a major fund; however it is presented
separately in the proprietary fund financial statements because it is the only other proprietary fund.
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The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 48 of this report,

Fiduciary funds. The City of Morristown maintains two types of fiduciary funds. An agency fund is
used to report resources held in a custodial capacity only. The City of Morristown uses an agency fund to
account for LAMTPO funding. LAMTFO is the metropolitan planning organization for Morristown’s
region encompassing two counties and four cities. LAMTPQO’s board consists of members from these
localities consisting of Mayors and City Administrators. The City also maintains a trust fund for the
OPEB obligation. The administration of the fund assets is contracted out to USI Advisors, Inc, In this
audit year the City fully funded its annual required contribution.

The basic fiductary fund financial statements can be found on pages 53 and 54 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found beginning on page 55 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Morristown’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government’s financial

position. In the case of the City of Morristown, assets exceeded liabilities by almost $172.0 million at the
close of the most recent fiscal year. Net position increased by $12.0 million for the period.

City of Morristown's Net Assets

Governmenial activities Business-type aclivities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assets $ 0 38593,133 5 3621256 5 64067089 5 64067089 5 102660222 5 100,301,345
Capital assets 54,203,414 51,021,973 175,127,598 156,140,762 229,331,012 217,162,735
Total assets 92,796,547 87,256,229 239,194,687 320,207,851 331,991,234 307,464,080
Long-term liabilities
outstanding 19,861,979 21,021,354 97,938,574 90,062,004 117,800,553 111,083,358
Other liabilities 13,126,833 11,547,965 26902972 24,140,806 43,029,805 35,688,771
Total liabilities 32,988,812 32,569,319 127,841,546 114,202,810 160,830,358 146,772,129
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets 33965440 20,647,943 88,050,533 79,424,880 122,015,973 109,072,823
Restricted 1,680,576 1,607,753 1,680,576 1,607,753
Assigned 0 0
Unrestricted 24,213,008 23431214 24.920,115 26,580,161 49,133,123 50011375
Total net position $ 59859024 F 54686910 0§ 112570648 § 106005041 0§ 172829672 § 160,691,951

Note: The tetal column includes internal balances that have been eliminated for reported in the reporied in the government-wide

statement of net position.
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By far the largest portion of the City of Morristown’s net position (69%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is stilt outstanding. The City of Morristown uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Morristown’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabtlities.

An additional portion of the City of Morristown’s net position (less than 1%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of wnrestricted net
position ($49,133,123) may be used to meet Morristown’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown is able to report positive balances in two of
the three categories of net position for governmental activities, and all three categories of net position for
business-type activities. The general fund had an unassigned fund balance of $12,155,081 on June 30,
2014.

Govemmental Activities Bosiness-Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,562,520 & 2,754,046 s 103,491,254 $ 101,066,384 $ 106053774 §  103,820430
Operating granis &
contributions 1,454,535 710,156 2,580,025 2,219,003 4,034,560 2,929,159
Capital grants &
contributions - - 524 286 1,602,948 524,286 1,602,948
General revenues: , .
Property taxes 9.313,995 6,083,552 - - 9,313,995 9,083,552
Sales tax 10,061,738 9,923 645 - - 10,061,738 9,923 645
lntergovernmental 4,476,998 5,146,051 - - 4,476,598 5,146,051
Other 4227 573 3,783,230 225,086 81,739 4452659 3,864 969
Total revenues 32,097,359 31,400,680 106,820,651 104,970,074 138918010 136,370,754
Expenses:
General government 2,837 464 3,593,414 - - 2,837 464 3,593,414
Public safety 14,634,316 14,016,226 - - 14,634,316 14,016,226
Public works 6,831,898 6.665,204 B - 6,831 898 6,665,204
Economic development 296,060 147,547 . - 296,060 147,547
Parks & recreation 2,056,499 1,773,943 - - 2056495 1,773,943
Civic support 1,011,941 1,098.472 - - LOLT1 1,098,472
Transportation - - - - - -
Retiree Health Insurance 306,363 401,695 - - 306,363 401,695
Interest on long-term debt 286,676 327,064 - - 286,676 327,064
Water - - 6,287,865 5,689,323 6,287,865 5,689,323
Wastewater - - 9,067,056 9,489,262 9,067,056 9489262
Storm water - - 832,332 810,198 832,132 810,198
Power - - 75,270,529 73,724,566 75,270,529 73,724,566
Broadband - - 6,945,100 7,256,552 6,945,100 7,256,552
Total expenses 28,261,217 28,023,565 98,402,682 96,969,901 126,663,899 124,993 466
Increase (decrease) in net
position before transfers 3,836,142 3,377,115 8,417,969 8,000,173 12,254, t11 11,377,288
Transfers 1,452 361 1,667,528 (1,452.361) (L.667,528) - -
Increase (decrease) in net
position 5,288,502 5,044,643 6,965,607 6,332,645 12,254,109 11,377,288
Net position - July 1, 2013 54,686,910 49,629 352 106,005,04] 100,318,072 160,601,951 149,947 424
Prior period adjustment (116,388) 12,95 - (645,676) (116,388) (632,761)
Net position - June 30,2014 § 50850024 § 54686910 £ 112970648 5 106,005,041 $ 172829672 § 160,691,951
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for FY 2014 can be briefly

summarized as follows:

¢ $442.178 in interest savings on variable rate debt.
¢ $201,332 sales tax collections above budget.

$329,115 in increased allocated for Greenway Grants issued by the State of Tennessee.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Morristown’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2014, amounts to $54 million and $175 million, respectively (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements
other than buildings, equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress.

{net ot depreciation}
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land 7,839,719 7,830,929 - 2,448,205 7,839,719 10,279,134
Buildings 12,291,359 11,661,128 - - 2,291,359 11,661,128
Improvements other
than buildings 1,094,385 1,215,343 - - 1,094 389 1,215,343
M achinery &
equipment 3,327,338 2,480,211 - - 3,327,338 2,480,211
Infrastructure 28,835.331 27,834,362 - - 28,835,331 27,834,362
Utility plant and
cquipment - - 167,284,097 142,897,429 167.,284.097 142,897,429
Construction in 315,278 - 7,843,501 10,795,128 8,658,779 10,795,128
Total 54,203,414 51,021,973 175,127,598 156,140,762 229,331,012 207,162,735

Additional information on the City of Morristown’s capital assets can be found on page 63 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown had total bonded debt
outstanding of § 126.3 million; of this amount $20.2 million comprises net direct debt of governmental
activities. The remainder of the City of Morristown’s debt represents bonds secured by specified revenue
sources and the full faith and credit of the government.

The City’s breakdown of variable and fixed rate debt is 44% and 56% respectively.

15




The following is a brief summary of the City’s long-term debt by fund:

City of Morristown's Long-Term Debt
Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014

Governmental activities

General Tund 5 20,995,733 % - % 1,110,165  § 19,885,568

Solid waste fund 378,203 - 25,858 § 352,405
Total governmenilal activities 21,373,996 - 1,136,023 20,237,973
Business-type activities

Sewer system 533,701,226 5,309,336 2,516,778 56,493,784

Storm water system 5,074,600 - 211,344 4,863,256

Electic system i6,161,313 3,589,250 1,024,937 18,725,626

Water system 15,241,950 - 832,480 14,409,470

Telecom system 10,976,215 9,971,286 9,322,627 11,624,874
Total business-ty pe activities 101,155,304 18,869,872 13,908,166 106,117,010
Total Debt $ 122,529,300 § 18,869,872 § 15,044,189 § 126,354,983

Additional information on the City of Morristown’s long-term debt can be found on page 75 of this
report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the City of Morristown was 7.7% for June 2014, which is a decrease
from a rate of 10.00% a year ago. The state’s average unemployment rate was 7.4% and the
national rate was 6.3%.

e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

o Sales tax increased $138,093 in FY 2014 when compared to FY 2013,

All of these factors were considered in the preparation and continual monitoring of the City of
Morristown’s budget for the FY 2014,

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Morristown’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for addition financial information should be addressed to the City of
Morristown, Administrative Services Director, P.O. Box 1499, Morristown, Tennessee 37816-1499. The
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and other information about the City may be found on the City’s
website www.mymorristown.com, as part of our continuing usage of advancing technology and e-
commerce.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ) . 13,823,418 5 28,403,167 3 42 226,585
Receivables {net of allowance for uncotlectibles) 12,700,759 8,737,534 21,438,293
inventories 92 576 1,613,423 1,705,999
internal balances 246,858 924,361 -
Due from others 440,009 440,009
Other current assets 99,345 99,345
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,695,083 9,695,083
Investments 7,177,504 7,177,504
Capital assets {net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 7,833,719 7,839,719
Buildings 12,291,389 12,291,359
Improvements 1,084,389 1,094,389
Equipment 3,327,338 3,327,338
Infrastructure 28,835,331 28,835,331
Utility plant and equipment 167,284,087 167,284,097
Construction in progress 815,278 7,843,501 8,658,779
Real estate - non-operating 11,729,522 11,729,522
Due from other funds 5,567,003 5,567,003
Qther assets 248,619 248,619
Plant acquisition adjustments 397,197 397,197
Total assets 92,796,547 238,430,843 330,056,172
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accrual for unbilled revenue 51,289 2,381,351 2,432,640
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 231,295 9,654,041 9,885,336
Accrued expenditures and other current liabilities 155,795 2,916,217 3,072,012
Due {o others - bonds and deposits 46,325 46,325
Internal balances 1,171,218 -
CGustomer deposits 3,746,142 3,746,142
Due to other funds 5,567,003 5,567,003
General bonded debt
Due within one year 1,173,561 5,687,961 6,861,522
Due in more than one year 19,064,413 95,473,310 114,537,723
Premium on bonds payable 224,682 224682
Capital lease obligation
Due within one year 18,877 18,877
Due in more than one year 57,606 57,606
Contractual liability
Due within one year 81,955 81,955
Due in more than one year 2,405,261 2,405,261
Accrued post retirement benelit obligation 652,420 652,420
Compensated absences:;
Estimated to be paid within one year 401,432 401,432
Estimated to be paid after one year 797,566 2,397 799,963
Total labilities 21,870,387 127,659,094 148,358,269
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unearned revenue 11,118,425 182,455 11,300,880
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 33,965,440 88,050,533 122,015,973
Reslricted for:
Community development 105,259 105,259
Narcotics 54,421 54,421
Gas Tax 1,520,896 1,520,896
Unrestricted (deficit) 24,213,008 24,820,115 49,133,123
Total net position $ 59,859,024 $ 112,970,648 $ 172,829,672

Amounts in the "Total" column have been adjusted to reflect the eliminations of internal balances between the governmental and
business-type activities and will not cross-foot.

The notes o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

Total
Solid Waste NonMajor Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $12,388,808 $ 30,111 $ 211,083 $12,630,002
Receivables {net of allowance 12,668,942 128,002 3,815 12,700,759
for uncoliectibles) B
Interfund toans recievabie - current - - - -
Bue from others 246,858 - - 246,858
Inventories 92 576 - - 92,576
Real estate - non-operating 11,729,522 - - 11,729,522
Total assets 37,026,708 158,1 13 214,899 37,399,717
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accrued unbitled revenue . 51,289 - 51,289
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $37,026,706 $ 209401 $ 214,899 37,451,006
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie $ 53,638.04 $ 1,783 3 - $ 55,421
Due to others-bonds 48,325 - - 46,325
Accrued expenditures and other current liakilities 149,295 4,312 2,188 165,755
Total liabilities 249258 6,095 2,188 257,541
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue 11,065,439 - 52,986 11,118,425
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendabie
Inventories 92,576 - - 92,578
Real estate - non-operating 11,729,522 - - 114,729,522
Restricted
Marcotics - 54,421 54,421
Community Development - 105,259 105,259
Gas tax 1,520,896 1,520,898
Assigned
Sidewalks 12,000 12,000
Capital outlay 2012 144,876 144 876
Narcotics 44 44
Solid waste 203,306 203,306
General government 148 148
Public safety 21,106 21,106
Public works 843 843
Parks and recreation 34,961 34,961
Unassigned 12,155,081 42 155,081
Total fund balances 25,712,009 203,306 159,724 26,075,039
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances $37,026,706 $ 209,401 $ 214,898

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

of net position are different because:

Capital assest used in governmental

activities are not financiai resources and,

therefore, are not reporled in the funds. 54,203,414

Long-term iiabilities, including bonds payabie, are not due and

pavable in the cusrent period and therefore are not reported

in the funds. {21,436,971)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the

costs of certain activities, such as insurance, to individual

funds. The assets and #abilities of the internal service fund

are included in governmental activities in the statement of

net position. 1,017,542
Net position of governmental actvities $59,859,024

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Baiances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds $ 1,208,334

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the
government-wide financial statements, capital asset additions are reported
as additions to capital assets. 6,162,979

in the government-wide financial statements, certain capital assets are
depreciated. in the governmental basis financial statements, capital assets
are charged to expenditures, therefore, depreciation is not taken. {2,981,503)

Issuance of long-term debt -

The payment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the
governmental funds financial statements, but is considered as a reduction
in debt in the city-wide financial statements. 1,136,023

The payment of bond issye expense is considered an expenditure in the
governmental financial statements, whereas, in the city-wide financial
statements, it is considered an asset and is amortized. -

Compensated absences are considered expenditures when paid on the
governmentat fund basis, but in the government-wide financial statements
are considered expenses as incurred. {154,540)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense)
of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. (82,791)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financiat resources and, therefare, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. -

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 5,288,502

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 22




City of Morristown, Tennessee

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

Local taxes:

Property taxes-current
Property taxes-prior
Penalty and interest
Property taxes-delinquent
In Heu/tax equivalent
Cable franchise tax
Gas franchise tax
Local option sales tax
Wholesale beer tax
Wholesale liquor tax
Business and gross receipts tax
Hotel and Motel tax

Total local taxes

Licenses and permits:
Beer permits
Building permits
Electrical permits
Plumbing permits
Gas permits
Development fees
Sidewalks
Sign permits
Server permits
Farmers market permits

Total licenses and permits

intergovernmental revenue:
USDA summer feeding program
ARRA grants
TVA gross receipts tax
State sales tax
Telecommunication sales tax
State income tax
State beer tax
Mixed drink tax
State gasoline tax
State PTS tax
Dept. of transportation proj. revenue
Dept. of transportation airport grants
Other state revenue
C.O.P.S. grant
State excise tax
C.C.P.S. more grant
Fublic safety in-service
Dept. of justice grants
Police department grants and reimb
Public works reimbursements
TIGER grant
Governor highway safety grant
Greenway grant and reimbursement
State of TN farmers market
TML grants
GCther county revenue
Total intergovernmental revenue

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
$ 8650000 $ 8650000 § B8B17816 § (32,184}
220,000 320,000 409,369 89.369
85,000 85,000 150,126 65,126
120,000 120,000 109,006 (10,994)
880,000 942 640 27,678 (914,962)
200,000 200,000 301,773 101,773
400,000 400,000 390,669 (9,331)
10,076,076 10,076,076 10,061,738 (14,338)
950,358 950,358 927,156 (23,202)
240,000 240,000 477,719 237,718
921,027 921,027 837,434 (83,593)
440,000 450,000 542,235 92,235
23,182,461 23,355,101 22,852,719 (502,382}
15,000 15,000 14,630 (370)
85,000 85,000 148,111 61,111
15,000 15,000 19,529 4529
11,000 11,000 14,672 3872
3,500 3,500 4,773 1,273
5,000 5,000 9,720 4,720
- - 3,500 3,500
- - 18,375 18,375
8,000 8,000 2,400 {5,600)
1,000 1,000 - {1,000)
143,500 143,500 233,710 90,210
90,000 111,160 112,614 1,454
- 170,000 273,249 103,249
165,840 165,840 322,362 156,522
1,875,000 1,875,000 2,076,332 201,332
2,300 2,300 2,943 643
135,000 135,000 263,715 128,715
12,000 12,000 13,787 1,787
- - 35,145 35,145
864,000 864,000 756,690 (107,310)
55,400 55,400 59,649 4,249
3,019,200 3,019,200 193,973 (2,825,227)
1,125,000 1,125,000 569,761 (565,239)
356,000 371,000 9,013 (361,987)
187,434 187,434 - (187.434)
50,000 "~ 50,000 10,7686 (39,234)
42,132 42132 130,476 88.344
- - 50,425 50,425
. 16,200 100,191 83,991
- 20,000 20,106 105
- - 63 63
- 89,000 89,220 220
- - 25,147 25,147
- 329,000 329,115 115
- - 1,000 1,000
- - 2,000 2,000
280,000 280,000 280,000 -
8,259,306 8,919,666 5,717,743 {3,201,923)

The notes to financial statements are an integral pant of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Fines and users fees:
Local match-private business - - 8,177 8,177
Recreation fees 145,000 145,000 134,359 (10,641)
City court fines and costs 900,000 900,000 648,512 (251,488)
Redflex citations - - 4,552 4,552
Sex offender registry 3,000 3,000 5,325 2,325
DUI fines 84,000 84,000 67,690 (16,310)

Total fines and users fees 1,132,000 1,132,000 868 616 (263,384)

Other revenue;
Morristown Utilities Commission - - 30,409 30,409
Donations to parks and recreation 10,000 10,000 3,511 (6,489)
Donations-police - - 1,526 1,526
Fire department donations - - 203 203
Police reports 2,000 2,000 1,510 (490)
Docview reports 1,000 1,000 641 (359)
Other revenues - - 102,535 102,535
Fire department charge for services - - 2,902 2,902
Interest on investments 5,293 5,293 51,673 46,380
Rental of city property 130,000 130,000 284,938 154,938
Rental income-airport 20,000 20,000 . 79,374 59,374
Sale of city property - 975,000 5,389 (969,611)
Judgments and restitution - - 652 652
Driver license verification - - 33 33
Insurance reimbursements - 24,475 39,128 14,653
Miscellaneous 38,000 38,000 23,039 {14,961}
Fund balance 1,151,088 1,330,303 - {1,330,303)

Total other revenue 1,357,381 2,536,071 627,462 {1,908,609)

Total revenue 34,074,648 36,086,338 30,300,249 {5,786,089)

Expendifures:

General government:

Mayor and city councit:
Wages & salaries permanent emp.. 37,200 37,700 37,560 {140)
Christmas bonus & longevity 667 807 800 (7)
FA.C.A. 2,348 2,348 2,133 (215)
Medicare 549 549 499 (50)
Employee health insurance 69,569 65,969 40,737 (25,232)
Employee life insurance 152 152 - (1562}
Workers compensation insurance - 3,200 - (3,200)
Postal service 175 175 154 21}
Printing services 1,200 1,200 1,123 (77)
Legal notices 2.100 2,100 2726 626
Eiectricity - 1,633 1,562 71
Water & sewer - 248 128 (120}
Natural gas & propane - 180 - (180}
Telephone services 600 1,250 674 (576)
Subscriptions & books 400 400 160 (240)
Memberships & dues 17,000 17,000 15,339 {1,661)
Education seminars & training - 3,000 1,785 {1,215)
Travel business expenses 12,000 12,000 12,937 937
Office supplies & materials 750 750 511 (239)
Office equipment - 3,600 3,564 (36)
Other supplies & materials 800 800 761 (39)
Insurance 3,304 3,304 3,102 (202)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Property (contents) insurance 690 710 709 )
Equipment rental/lease 2,625 2,625 1,765 (860)
Council Contingency 90,000 50,425 4,000 (46,425)
Total Mayor and city council 242 129 212,125 132,728 {79,397)
Council elections:
Other contracted services 15,000 15,000 - {15,000)
City administrator:
Wages and salaries 320,835 327,935 319,060 (8,875}
QOvertime 1,056 1,156 1,069 (87)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. - 2,600 2,560 (40}
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,056 1,456 1,450 (6}
F.LCA. 20,023 20,023 17,214 {2,809)
Medicare 4,683 4,683 4,411 (272)
TCRS contribution 47,409 47,409 47,106 (303)
Employee health insurance 47,286 47,286 36,513 (10,773)
Employee life insurance 1,216 1,216 - (1,216)
Workers compensation insurance 4 565 4,565 4,202 (363)
Unemployment insurance - 7,000 5,015 (1,985)
Postal service 200 200 233 33
Printing services - 1,500 1,466 (34)
Legal notices 1,500 1,500 916 (584)
Electricity - 5,717 5,466 {251)
Water & sewer - 866 449 {417)
Natural gas & propane - 630 - {630}
Telephone services 1,300 2,600 1,566 (1,034)
Subscriptions & books 2,000 2,000 1,940 (60)
Memberships & dues 4,500 4,500 2,471 (2,029)
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,500 1,353 (147)
Trave!l business expenses 15,000 15,000 3,821 (11,179)
Other contracted services 4,000 4,500 7.824 3,324
Office supplies & materials 500 500 116 (384)
Office equipment - 2,000 1,704 (296)
General operating supplies 500 500 413 87)
Other supplies & materials - 20 10 (10)
Insurance 353 353 N 22)
Property (contenis) insurance 74 84 76 (8)
Equipment rental/lease 3,000 3,000 1,798 {1,202)
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 17 17
Grants & other subsidies 25,000 23,000 - (23,000)
Total city administrator 507,556 535,299 470,572 (64,727)
Finance department:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 244,954 284,954 281,928 {3,026}
Overtime 500 500 200 (300}
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,740 1,740 1,629 (111)
F.L.C.A. 15,326 15,326 17,150 1,824
Medicare 3,584 3,584 4,011 427
TCRS contribution 36,288 36,288 41,605 5,317
Employee health insurance 76,151 76,151 51,579 (24,572)
Employee life insurance 1,061 1,061 - (1,061)
Warkers compensation insurance 9,936 10,086 9,105 (981)

The notes te financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in_ Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Postal service 10,000 10,000 5,189 (4,801)
Printing services 500 500 35 (465)
Legal notices 1,200 1,200 1,329 129
Electricity - 12,251 11,714 (537)
Water & sewer - 1,756 961 (795)
Natural gas & propane - 1,350 - (1,350)
Telephone services - 500 594 94
Medical services - 100 93 7
Accounting & audit services 45,000 45,000 67675 12,675
Cashier over/short - 10 5 {5)
Other professional services 105,000 105,000 101,698 {3,302)
Repair & maint, office equip. 500 500 - (500)
Subscriptions & books 250 280 - (250)
Memberships & dues 1,750 1,750 1,458 (292)
Education seminars & training 3,000 3,000 2,025 (975)
Travel business expenses 6,000 6,000 3,635 (2,3658)
Other contracted services 22,500 22,500 11,323 (11,177)
Office supplies & materials 5,500 7,600 4,400 {3,100)
Office equipment 4,000 4,000 615 (3,385)
Computers/software - 10 9 (1)
General operating supplies 200 200 243 43
Insurance 1,035 1,035 3,922 2,887
OPEB funding 23,281 23,281 - (23,281}
Property (contents) insurance 217 227 223 (4}
Equipment rental/lease 7,500 24,500 10,834 (13,666}
Bank services & charges - 7,650 9,363 1,713
Cash variances - 120 112 (8)
Reimbursable expenses - - 0 0
Total finance department 626,973 709,880 634,671 (75,209)
Purchasing department:
Wages and salaries 46,586 47,386 46,959 427)
Overtime 250 250 - (250}
Christmas bonus and longevity 288 288 282 (6}
FICA 2,922 2,922 2,811 (111}
Medicare 683 683 657 (26)
TCRS contribution 6,918 6,918 6,939 21
Employee health insurance 11,730 11,730 11,563 {167)
Employee life insurance 183 183 - {183)
Workers compensation insurance 1,642 1,642 1,401 (241)
Postal service 200 200 402 202
Other professional services 200 200 - (200)
Membership and dues - 100 79 21)
Education seminars and training 500 500 - (600)
Travel 500 500 877 377
Other contracted services - 100 44 s))
Office supplies and materials 400 400 213 (187)
Other supplies & materials 50 50 - (50)
Insurance 894 894 839 (65)
Property (contents) insurance 187 187 193 6
Equipment rental/lease 1,750 1,750 - {1,750)
Total purchasing department 75,883 76,883 73,259 (3,624

26




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
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The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Retiree henefits-general fund:

Health insurance/retirees 500,000 500,000 306,363 {193,637)
Total retiree benefits-general fund 500,000 500,000 306,363 {193,637)
Computer operations:

Wages and salaries 57,661 61,061 60,354 (707)

Christmas bonus and longevity 1,131 1,131 282 (849)

FICA 3,639 3,639 3,616 (23)

Medicare 851 851 846 (5)

TCRS contribution 8,616 8,616 8,906 290

Employee health insurance 23,356 23,356 11,489 {11,867)

Employee life insurance 226 226 - (226)

Workers compensation insurance 3,624 5,124 1,853 (3.271)

Clothing/uniforms/shoes 100 100 114 14

Postal service - 100 0 (100}

Electricity - 1,633 1,562 (71}

Water & sewer - 248 128 (120)

Natural gas & propane - 180 - (180}

Telephone services 3,000 2,900 1,784 (1,116)

Medical services - 2,100 2,048 (52)

Other professional services 750 750 - {750)

Repair & maint. office equip. 500 500 160 (340)

Repair & maint. bldg./grounds - 14,350 14,350 -

Subscriptions & bocks 200 200 35 (165)

Memberships & dues 400 400 - (400)

Education seminars & training 3,500 3,500 2,805 {695)

Travel business expenses 2,500 2,500 145 (2,355)

Other contracted services 31,600 31,600 38,659 7,059

Office supplies & materials 200 200 125 {75)

ADP parts & components 5,000 5,000 4,549 {451)

General operating supplies 600 600 422 (178)

(Gasoline & diesel fuel 200 200 228 28

Insurance 3,953 3,953 3,710 (243)

Property (contents) insurance 828 853 851 (2)

Equipment rental/lease 250 250 - (250)

Office equipment 117,064 102,714 102,506 (208)
Total computer operations 269,649 278,835 261,529 (17,306)
Human resources:

Wages & salaries permanent emp. 144,926 146,926 145,089 (1,837)

Overtime 500 500 - (500)

Christmas bonus & longevity 1,164 1,164 1,118 46)

F.I.C.A 9,089 9,089 8,321 (768)

Medicare 2126 2,126 1,946 (180)

TCRS centribution 21,349 21,349 20,446 (903)

Employee heaith insurance 29,384 29,384 29,156 (228)

Employee life insurance 533 533 - (533}

Workers compensaticn insurance 2,798 6,748 3,502 (3,2486)

Tuition reimbursement 4,000 4,000 - {4,000}

Postal service 300 300 315 15

Printing services 750 750 21 {729)

l.egal notices 775 5,775 4,785 {990)

Electricity - 4,084 3,805 (179)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Water & sewer - 919 320 (599)
Naturai gas & propane - 450 - (450}
Telephone services - 2,000 1,143 (857)
Medical services - 100 93 (7}
Subscriptions & books 400 400 240 (160}
Memberships & dues 900 900 575 (325)
Education seminars & training 11,500 11,500 3,287 {8,213}
Travel business expenses 4,000 4,000 6,176 2,176
Other contracted services 6,750 11,750 32,075 20,325
Office supplies & materials 1,000 1,600 2,379 779
Office equipment 500 500 3,087 2,587
General operating supplies 1,000 1,000 80 {920)
Other supplies & materials 200 1,700 1,935 235
Insurance 3,482 3,482 3,240 (242}
Property {contents) insurance 730 750 750 {8)]
Equipment rentai/lease 2,500 6,500 3,355 (3,145)
Total human resgurces 250,656 280,279 277,338 (2,941)
Legal services:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 12,368 12,368 10,399 (1,969)
Christmas bonus & longevity 2,937 2,937 303 (2.544)
Health and life insurance - 120 104 (16)
F.ILC.A. 949 949 572 377
Medicare 222 222 134 (88)
TCRS contribution 2,247 2,247 - (2,247}
Employee health insurance 11,591 11,591 14,763 3,172
Employee life insurance 49 49 - (49)
Workers compensation insurance 3,153 3,153 1,401 {1,752)
Attorney consult fees 59,000 63,000 86,603 23,603
Legal services 20,000 20,000 700 (19,300)
Subscriptions & books 3,750 3,750 4,930 1,180
Other contracted services - 1,300 1,250 (50)
Insurance - - 883 BB3
Property (contents) insurance 197 1,097 203 (894)
Total legat services 116,463 122,783 122,335 (448)
Community and economic affairs:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 170,573 170,573 151,932 {18,641)
Qvertime 134 134 - (134)
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,128 1,128 686 (442)
F.LC.A. 10,654 10,654 9,143 {1,511)
Medicare 2,492 2,492 2,138 (354}
TCRS contribution 25,225 25,225 22,357 (2,868}
Employee health insurance 26,799 26,799 22,493 (4,306}
Employee life insurance 654 654 - (654)
Workers compensation insurance 4,349 5,849 4,622 (1,227)
Postal service - 300 205 (95)
Legal notices 6,000 6,000 4,788 (1,212)
Medical services - 170 166 (4
Other professional services 500 500 - (500}
Repair & maint. office equip. 3,500 3,500 2,713 (787)
Subscriptions & books 500 500 78 (422)
Memberships & dues 2,000 2,000 975 (1,025)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Education seminars & training 2,500 2,500 1,421 {1,079}
Travel business expenses 4,000 4,000 4,091 91
Other contracted services 8,800 8,800 1,456 {7,344)
Office supplies & materials 3,000 3,000 2,787 (213)
General operating supplies 1,500 1,500 50 {1,450)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 1,500 1,537 922 (614)
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 300 600 567 (33)
Other supplies & materials 2,000 2,000 1,536 (464)
Insurance 894 894 839 {55}
Property {contents) insurance 187 199 193 (6)
Equipment rental/lease 1,000 3,000 3,833 833
LAMTPO local match - - 106,399 106,399
Grants & other subsidies 200,000 584,000 624,074 40,074
Total community and economic affairs 480,189 868,508 970,463 101,955
Codes enforcement;
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 76,657 76,657 65,979 (10,678)
Ovettime - 1,000 686 314)
Christmas bonus & longevity 582 582 740 158
F..C.A. 4,789 4,789 3,932 (857)
Medicare 1,120 1,120 920 (200}
TCRS confribution 11,339 11,339 9,901 (1,438)
Employee health insurance 23,247 23,247 20,736 (2,511)
Employee life insurance 286 286 - (286)
Workers compensation insurance 1,687 1,687 3,060 1,373
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 500 500 422 {78)
Postal service 350 350 1,124 774
Legal notices 200 200 - (200)
Electricity - 1,633 1,662 (71
Water & sewer - 48 128 80
Natural gas & propane - 180 - (180)
Telephone services 400 400 684 284
Medical services - 50 23 (22)
Computer/data processing 250 200 - (200)
Memberships & dues 75 50 - (50)
Education seminars & training 500 500 250 {250)
Travel business expenses 500 500 507 7
Other contracted services 15,000 30,000 27,776 (2,224)
Office supplies & materials 100 100 97 (3)
Small tools & equipment 500 500 1,367 867
General operating supplies - 25 5 (21)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 4,500 5,056 6,099 1.044
Veh. partsfoilfluidftires 500 500 3,187 2,687
Insurance 471 471 442 (29)
Property (contents) insurance 99 99 101 2
Equipment rental/lease 100 100 217 117
Total codes enforcement 143,752 162,169 149,949 {12,220)
Engineering:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 188,833 188,833 117,695 (71,138)
Overtime 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Christmas bonus & longevity 813 813 - {813)
FJ.CA. 11,820 11,820 7,152 (4,668)

The notes to financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.
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GIS:

Police supervision:

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Medicare 2,764 2,764 1,673 (1,091)
TCRS contribution 27,987 27,987 16,228 {11,759)
Employee health insurance 37,652 37.652 35,448 (2,204)
Employee life insurance 741 741 - {741)
Workers compensation insurance 4,931 5,981 4,342 (1,639)
Unemployment insurance - 2,000 1,925 (75)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 250 250 321 71
Postal service 200 200 62 (138)
Legal notices 500 500 - (500}
Electricity - 4,084 3,905 (179}
Water & sewer - 819 320 (499)
Naturat gas & propane - 450 - (450)
Telephone services 2,700 2,700 888 (1,812)
Medical services - 130 158 28
Other professional services 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Subscriptions & books 250 250 - (250)
Memberships & dues 2,565 2,565 2,019 (5486)
Education seminars & fraining 250 250 - (250)
Travel business expenses 2,500 2,500 (75) {2,575)
Other contracted services - 2,900 56,293 53,393
Office supplies & materials 3,500 3,500 1,632 (1,868)
Office equipment - 3,200 3,156 44)
Computers/software 900 900 - (900}
General operating supplies 4,000 4,000 2,019 (1,981)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 5,000 5,109 1,179 (3,930}
Veh. parts/oil/fluidftires 2,000 2,000 790 {1,210}
Other supplies & materials 900 900 - (900}
Insurance 1,736 1,736 1,630 (106}
Property (contents) insurance 364 374 374 (0}
Equipment rental/lease 6,840 19,840 10,946 (8,894)
Total engineering 311,996 339,748 270,078 (69,669)
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 61,200 61,200 15,976 (45,224)
F.ILC.A. 3,794 3,794 971 (2,823)
Medicare 887 887 227 (660)
TCRS contribution 8,984 8,984 2,354 (6,630)
Empioyee health insurance 10,687 10,687 2,207 (8,480)
Employee life insurance 11,760 11,760 - (11,760)
Telephone services - 300 217 (83)
Medical services - 300 186 {114)
Memberships & dues 1,500 1,500 - {1,500}
Education seminars & training 2,000 2,000 - (2,000}
Travel business expenses 750 750 - (750)
Other contracted services 10,000 9,400 - (9,400)
Office supplies & materials 500 500 392 (108)
Ofifice equipment 5,000 5,000 4913 (87)
General operating supplies 1,500 1,500 70 {1,430)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 1,500 1,500 - {1,500)
Other supplies & materials 2,500 2,500 - {2,500)
Total GIS 122,562 122,562 27,514 (95,048)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Whages & salaries permanent emp. 246,714 283,314 281,656 {1,658)
Overtime 1,000 1,000 - {1,000)
Cther salaries & wages 3,684 524 - (524)
Christmas bonus & longevity 2,486 2,986 3,505 519
F.I.C.A, 15,735 17,242 17,137 (105)
Medicare 3,680 4,033 4,008 (25)
TCRS contribution 37,255 40,491 40,454 (37)
Employee health insurance 58,684 58,684 67,820 9,136
Employee life insurance 958 958 - {958)
Workers compensation insurance 6,222 11,186 8,405 (2,781)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 950 950 820 (130)
Postal service 1,200 1,200 977 (223)
Printing services 300 700 711 11
Legal notices 350 350 - (350)
Electricity - 46,553 44512 (2,041}
Water & sewer - 5,354 3,653 (1,701)
Natural gas & propane - 5,130 - {5,130}
Telephone services 1,100 2,300 3,320 1,020
Medical services - 28 28 -
Computer/data processing 30,500 30,500 37,217 6,717
Other professional services 1,000 1,000 978 {22)
Repair & maint. vehicles 150 150 - (150}
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds - 144 143 (1)
Subscriptions & books 850 850 737 (113}
Memberships & dues 2,650 2,650 2,724 74
Education seminars & training 2,300 2,300 2,250 (50)
Travel business expenses 8,140 7,968 6,027 (1,941)
Other contracted services - 6,500 6,500 -
Office supplies & materials 1,200 1,200 1,139 (61)
Office equipment 800 800 806 6
Gasoline & diesel fuel 6,650 7.030 4,055 (2,975)
Veh. parts/oilfiluidftires 500 500 120 (380;
Other supplies & materials - - 21 21
insurance 5,082 5,082 4,770 (312)
Property {(contents) insurance 1,065 1,095 1,095 (O
Equipment rentalflease 4,000 3,772 2,993 (779)
Sex offenders administration - - 3,059 3,059
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 653 653
DCJ JAG grant - 16,428 16,428 {0)
Total police supervision 445,105 570,952 568,719 (2,233)
Patrol and fraffic:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 2,659 258 2,598,358 2,568,620 (29,738)
CQvertime 85,000 106,350 106,258 {92)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 2,000 9,800 10,002 202
Holiday pay 77,684 77,684 93,333 15,649
Christmas bonus & longevity 24,065 26,165 26,048 (117
F.IL.C.A. 176,576 176,576 170,155 {6,421)
Medicare 39,296 39,796 39,795 n
TCRS contribution 418,087 418,087 414,697 (3,390)
Employee health insurance 726,344 726,344 726,474 130
Employee life insurance 10,119 10,119 - {10,119)
Workers compensation insurance 73,727 186,085 110,804 (75,281)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 54,700 55,078 42,268 (12,810)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Postal service 500 616 102 (514)
Printing services 2,500 2,500 2,631 131
Telephone services 12,250 12,250 12,724 474
Medical services 5,500 5,500 8,591 3,091
Other professional services 5,000 5,000 4,603 (397)
Repairs & maint. communications 1,600 1,500 1,208 (292)
Repair & maint. vehicles 25,000 42,901 42,678 (223)
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds 5,000 5,000 5,258 258
Memberships & dues 2,000 2,000 662 (1,338)
Education seminars & training 24,000 24,000 27,669 3,669
Trave! business expenses 25,000 25,000 15,088 (9,.912)
Other contracted services 8,300 9.047 7,702 {1,345)
Office supplies & materials 10,000 10,000 9,864 (136)
Munitions 24,000 25,554 19,776 (5,777}
Small tools & equipment 38,675 47,075 46,477 (5598)
Janitorial supplies 100 100 " (100}
General operating supplies 3,000 2,807 2,835 28
Gasoline & diesel fuel 268,000 286,747 209,318 (77,429)
Veh. parts/oil/fluidftires 65,000 65,000 70,003 5,003
{nsurance 86,103 86,103 80,849 (5,254)
Property (contents) insurance 17,947 18,447 18,445 (2)
Equipment rental/lease 4,643 4,643 2,700 (1,943)
Other miscellaneous expenses - 193 193 (1)
Motor equipment 299,350 297,889 296,081 (1,808)
Other capital outlay 46,250 53,311 53,311 -
Total patrol and traffic 5,326,474 5,463,625 5,247,218 (216,407)
Police investigation:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 813,056 810,466 806,954 (3,512)
Overtime 28,000 30,590 30,533 (57}
Christmas bonus & longevity 10,760 11,560 11,559 (1)
F.I.C.A. 52,813 52,813 51,197 (1,616)
Medicare 12,351 12,351 11,974 377)
TCRS contribution 125,047 125,047 124,472 {575)
Employee health insurance 176,205 176,205 175,719 {486)
Employee life insurance 3,079 3,079 - (3.079)
Workers compensation insurance 16,661 40,461 21,715 (18,746)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 9,750 9,750 9,750 {0
Postal service 500 500 635 135
Printing services 200 200 205 5
Telephone services 4,500 5,700 5612 (88)
Medical services 150 150 294 144
Other professional services 300 300 200 (100)
Repair & maint. vehicles 700 700 573 (127)
Subscriptions & books 50 50 35 (19)
Memberships & dues 500 500 418 (82)
Education seminars & training 3,000 3,300 1,510 {1,790)
Travel business expenses 7,000 6,700 2,577 (4,123)
Other contracted services - 25 25 -
Office supplies & materials 6,100 6,057 5,857 200)
General operating supplies 3,100 3,100 2917 (183)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 28,200 29,945 17,576 {12,370)
Veh. parts/oilfluidftires 6,800 6,800 6,598 (202)
Insurance 19,763 19,763 18,551 (1,212}

The notes o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Property (contents) insurance 4,142 5,300 4,256 (1,044)
Equipment rental/lease 9,500 9,500 5,852 (3,648)
Other miscellaneous expenses - 18 18 (1)
Motor equipment 27,500 27,500 26,552 {948)
Total police investigation 1,369,727 1,398,430 1,344,135 (54,295)
Fire supervision:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 400,507 407,207 407,211 4
Other salaries & wages 1,900 - - -
Christmas bonus & longevity 5,420 5,585 5,580 (5)
F.I.C.A. 25,285 25,285 24,878 (407)
Medicare 5,913 5,913 5,818 (95)
TCRS contribution 59,869 60,274 60,277 3
Employee health insurance 70,691 69,331 70,168 827
Employee life insurance 1,508 58 - (58)
Workers compensation insurance 3,811 7.004 7,004 -
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 500 95 - (95)
Postal service 50 50 63 13
Electricity - 360 245 (115)
Natural gas & propane - 2,940 1,129 (1,811)
Telephone services 2,500 2,500 2,297 (203)
Medical services - 28 84 56
Subscriptions & books 300 300 378 78
Memberships & dues 700 700 484 (216)
Education seminars & training 500 367 70 (297)
Travel business expenses 700 700 652 {48)
Office supplies & materials 1,900 1,900 1,267 (633}
Office equipment - 1,650 1,603 47
General operating supplies 300 272 - (272)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 6,500 6,852 5,050 {1,802}
Veh. parts/oii/fluidftires 1,500 1,500 2,297 797
Insurance 1,976 1,976 1,855 (121)
Property (contents) insurance 414 426 426 (0}
Equipment rentallease 6,500 6,500 4,474 (2,026)
Total Fire supervision 509,244 609,773 603,299 (6,474)
Fire inspection:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 63,740 68,640 68,643 3
Other salaries & wages 1,900 - - -
Christmas bonus & longevity 846 846 846 0
FA.CA. 4,122 4177 4173 {4
Medicare 964 979 976 {3)
TCRS contribution 9,760 10,120 10,118 (2)
Employee heaith insurance 11,775 11,775 11,671 (104)
Employee life insurance 243 243 - (243)
Workers compensation insurance 4,512 9,882 8,405 (1,477)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 300 300 - (300)
Postal service 100 100 5 {95)
Telephone services 600 600 602 2
Subscriptions & books 1,000 1,000 740 (260)
Memberships & dues 400 400 455 55
Education seminars & training 2,000 2,000 1,840 (160)
Travel business expenses 5,600 5,500 5775 275

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Qriginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Public relations expenses 3,500 3,500 4,064 564
Other contracted services 300 300 - (300}
Office supplies & materials 300 300 182 (118}
General operating supplies 300 300 127 {173)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 6,000 6,443 5,432 (1,011)
Veh. parts/oil/fluid/tires 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Insurance - 1,856 1,855 (1)
Property {contents) insurance 414 426 426 (12,177)
Equipment rentalflease - 4,200 3,688 (25,151)
Total fire inspection 119,576 134,887 130,222 (41,680}
Fire stations:
Postal service 0 2 1 (1)
Electricity 0 30,240 35,340 5,100
Water & sewer 0 8,496 7416 {1,080)
Natural gas & propane 0 20,666 14,757 {5,909)
Telephane services 0 9,291 9,366 75
Repairfmaint. operations equip. 0 3,000 1,165 {1,835)
Repair & maint. office equip. 3,000 0] o] -
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds 40,000 40,000 43,289 3,289
Repair & maint. other 3,000 3,000 4,735 1,735
Other contracted services 13,600 13,598 11,882 {1,716)
Office supplies & materials 300 300 303 3
Janitorial supplies 18,500 18,500 18,535 35
General operating supplies 6,500 6,500 6,714 214
Gasoline & diesel fuel 300 300 0 (300)
Veh. parts/oilffiuid/tires 100 100 386 286
Insurance 7,058 7,058 0 (7,058)
Propenrty (contents) insurance 1,479 1,479 1,520 41
Total fire stations 93,837 162,530 155,410 (7,120}
Fire fighting:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 3,333,877 3,335,927 3,336,334 407
Overlime 209,500 228,500 228,301 (199}
Haoliday pay 67,798 138,798 140,338 1,540
Christmas bonus & longevity 36,853 39,353 38,803 {(550)
F.1.C.A. 226,178 226,178 222,471 (3,707)
Medicare 52,896 52,896 52,029 (867)
TCRS contribution 535,531 535,531 540,078 (8,706)
Employee health insurance 913,304 872,254 875,058
Employee life insurance 12,087 12,087 -
Workers compensation insurance 72,370 146,620 132,069 (14,551)
Clothingfuniferms/shoes 55,000 54,685 54,280 {405)
Postal service 300 300 147 (153)
Eiectricity - 6,000 6,019 19
Water & sewer 2,000 36,120 30,097 (6,023)
Telephone services 400 400 - (400)
Medical services - 2,319 2,403 84
Other professionai services 30,000 35,037 34,288 (749)
Repair & maint. vehicles 500 500 75 (425)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 8,000 8,000 8,339 339
Subscriptions & books 2,500 2,500 1,791 (709)
Memberships & dues 7,000 7,000 8,476 1,476
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Original Final
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Education seminars & training 40,000 38,290 10,377 (27,913)
Travel business expenses 20,000 20,728 40,425 19,696
Other contracted services 700 700 625 (75)
Office supplies & materials 1,000 1,000 375 (6286)
General operating supplies 15,000 18,846 14,794 {4,051)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 65,000 68,257 30,483 (37,773)
Veh. parts/oil/fluidftires 70,000 71,226 59,630 (11,5986)
Insurance 94,113 92,257 88,729 {3,528)
Property (contents) insurance 20,136 20,271 20,269 (2
Equipment rentalflease 4,000 4,000 2,792 {1,208)
Machinery & equipment - 3,609 3,853 243
Motor equipment 425,000 425,989 425,484 (100,617)
Total fire fighting 6,321,043 6,506,178 6,409,233 (201,026)
Fire and medical response:
Ctothing/uniforms/shoes 4,000 4315 4,310 (5)
Printing services 300 300 256 (44}
Repair/maint. operations equip. 2,000 5475 5,421 (54)
Subscriptions & books 0 450 450 (0)
Memberships & dues 150 150 0 {150}
Education seminars & training 5,000 5,000 4,560 {440}
Small tools & equipment 6,000 6,180 6,176 (4)
General operating supplies 3,500 4,377 4373 (4)
Insurance 1,976 1,976 1,855 (121)
Property {contents) insurance 0 430 426 (4)
Total fire and medical response 22,926 28,653 27,827 (826)
inspections:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 280,132 281,232 281,435 203
Christmas bonus & fongevity 4,022 4,182 4,181 (1)
F.I.C.A. 17,618 17,618 17,275 (343)
Medicare 4,120 4,120 4,040 (80}
TCRS contribution 41,714 41,714 41,242 (472)
Employee health insurance 58,777 57,677 57,168 {509)
Employee life insurance 1,083 1,083 - {(1,083)
Workers compensation insurance 6,293 7,283 5,604 (1679)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 1,000 1,000 1,430 430
Postal service 250 250 514 264
Printing services 200 200 145 (55)
Legal notices 350 350 482 132
Electricity - 4,084 3,905 (179)
Waler & sewer - 469 320 (149)
Natural gas & propane - 450 - (450)
Telephone services 1,000 1,000 1,646 646
Medical services - - 28 28
Other professional services 2,000 2,000 - {2,000)
Subscriptions & books 400 400 130 (270)
Memberships & dues 800 800 522 (278)
Education seminars & training 2,400 2,400 1,123 {(1.277)
Travel business expenses 850 850 883 33
Other contracted services 36,000 35,741 7,081 (28,660)
Office supplies & materials 250 250 409 159
Office equipment - 259 259 -

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Gasoline & diese! fuel 6,000 6,428 4,391 (2,037)
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 2,000 2,000 1,203 (797)
Cther supplies & materials 400 400 254 (1486)
Insurance 1,788 1,788 1,678 (110)
Property {contents) insurance 375 386 385 W)
Equipment rental/lease 1,000 13,350 8,636 {4,814)
Total inspections 470,822 489,764 448,269 {43,495)
Public works supervision:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 105,604 120,404 120,409 5
Overtime - 100 99 (1)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. - 50 44 (6)
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,602 1,602 452 (1,150}
F.LC.A. 6,647 7,222 7,215 (7}
Medicare 1,554 1,704 1,687 (17}
TCRS contribution 15,738 17,938 17.910 (28}
Employee health insurance 23,492 25,892 26,231 339
Employee life insurance 406 406 - {406}
Workers compensation insurance 2,347 5,347 2,663 (2,784)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 3,500 3,500 1,910 (1,590)
Postal service 25 25 0 (25)
Printing services 100 100 - {100}
Legal notices 200 200 278 78
Telephone services 1,000 1,000 1,054 54
Medical services 300 300 84 (216)
Repair & maint. office equip. 100 100 - (100}
Subscriptions & books 50 50 - (50}
Memberships & dues 500 500 817 317
Education seminars & training 3,000 3,000 390 (2,610}
Travel business expenses 3,000 3,000 737 (2,263}
Other contracted services 350 350 12,120 11,770
Office supplies & materials 1,500 1,500 1,401 (99)
Office equipment 1,600 1,600 117 (1,483)
Janitorial supplies 100 100 - {100}
General operating supplies 300 300 294 (6)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 3,500 3,660 2,192 (1,469)
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 1,700 1,700 1,248 (452)
{nsurance 2,965 2,965 2,783 (182)
Property {(contents} insurance 621 641 638 {3)
Equipment rental/lease 3,300 9,800 4,753 (5,047}
Total public works supervision: 185,101 215,056 207 425 (7,632)
Buildings and grounds:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 105,866 113,666 113,579 &7
Overtime 6,000 7.300 7,250 (50)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 25,000 20,155 20,351 196
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,533 1,533 1,373 (160)
F.I.C.A. 8,581 8,581 8,568 (14)
Medicare 2,007 2,007 2,004 (3)
TCRS contribution 16,647 16,647 16,392 {255)
Employee health insurance 35,079 32,619 32,537 82)
Employee life insurance 402 402 - (402)
Workers compensation insurance 6,031 7,381 6,796 (585)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Unemployment insurance - 2,460 2,460 -
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 3,000 3,000 2,205 (795)
Postal service 25 25 - 25)
Legal notices - 1,229 1,229 (1)
Electricity 350,000 52,584 32,318 (20,265}
Water & sewer 55,000 23,472 42 713 19,241
Natural gas & propane 55,000 39,452 27,137 (12,315)
Telephone services 87,000 79,748 44,484 (35,264)
Medical services 300 300 196 {104}
Other professional services 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Repair & maint, vehicles 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 3,000 3,000 3,093 93
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds 80,000 81,000 70,441 (10,559)
Subscriptions & books 25 25 - (25}
Memberships & dues 500 500 - {500)
Education seminars & training 1,500 271 90 (181}
Travel business expenses 1,000 1,000 168 {832)
Other contracted services 28.316 28,316 30,211 1,865
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 4,138 138
Janitorial supplies 12,000 12,000 10,659 {1,341)
Generat operating supplies 20,000 20,000 16,222 (3,778)
Gasoline & diesei fuel 5,000 5,458 4,181 (1.277)
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 4,000 4,000 1,160 (2,840)
Insurance 9,411 9,411 8,834 (577)
Property (contents) insurance 1,972 2,027 2,027 {O)
Equipment rental/lease 1,000 1,000 697 (303)
Other miscellaneous expenses 2,000 2,088 2,078 {10)
Machinery & equipment 10,000 10,000 8,298 (1,702}
Motor equipment 28,500 31,100 30,877 (223)
Other capital outlay - 7,252 7,252 [(8)]
Total buildings and grounds 972,695 638,008 562,016 (75,992)
Equipment shop:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 277,744 282,044 281,991 (53)
Overtime 10,000 12,900 12,778 (122)
Christmas bonus & longevity 3,621 3,781 3,778 {3)
F.I.CA 18,065 18,065 17,862 (203)
Medicare 4,225 4,225 4177 48)
TCRS contribution 42,772 43,872 43,832 40)
Employee health insurance 81,957 79,057 78,653 {404)
Employee life insurance 1,076 1,076 - (1.076)
Workers compensation insurance 7,595 7,120 10,665 3,545
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 7,000 14,500 7473 {7,027}
Postal service - 11 11 0y
Naturat gas & propane 300 300 140 (160}
Telephone services 1,000 1,000 724 (276)
Medical services 1,000 1,000 165 {835)
Other professional services 500 489 - {489)
Repair & maint. vehicles 500 500 - (500)
Education seminars & training 2,000 2,000 569 (1,431)
Travel business expenses 300 300 - (300}
Other contracted services - 2,800 1,937 210 (1,727)
Office supplies & materials 500 500 421 {79}
Small tools & equipment 11,300 11,300 9,465 (1,835)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Janitorial supplies 3,000 3,000 3,245 245
General operating supplies 1,000 1,000 509 (491)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 4,000 4,000 4,563 563
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 2,000 2,000 1,345 {655)
insurance 1,976 1,976 1,855 {(121)
Property (contents) insurance 414 414 426 12
Equipment rental/lease 1,200 1,200 744 {456)
Landfill fee/disposition chgs.. - 1,063 1,062 (1)
Total equipment shop 487,845 500,630 486,661 {13,969)
Street repairs and maintenance:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 336,798 336,798 301,333 (35,465)
Overtime 8,500 8,500 8,392 (108)
Christmas bonus & longevity 5,865 5,865 5,858 {7)
F.I.C.A, 21,772 21,772 18,552 {3,220)
Medicare 5,092 5,092 4,339 (753)
TCRS contribution 51,551 51,551 46,286 (5,265)
Employee health insurance 105,309 105,309 91,315 (13,994)
Employee life insurance 1,299 1,299 - (1,299)
Workers compensation insurance 10,965 21,985 12,952 (9,033}
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 6,000 6,000 4,746 (1,254)
Contracts with other agencies - 500 500 -
Telephone services 1,000 1,000 724 (2786)
Medical services 2,000 2,000 1,540 (460)
Repair & maint. vehicles 1,000 1,000 - {1,000)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 22,000 22,000 13,598 (8,402)
Education seminars & training 1,200 1,200 1,680 480
Travel business expenses 400 400 - (400)
Other contracted services 2,000 1,770 - {1,770)
Office supplies & materials 300 300 508 208
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 11,178 7,178
Janitorial supplies 200 200 - (200)
General operating supplies 8,000 8,000 6,064 {1,936)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 45,000 47,249 24,448 {22,802)
Veh. partsfoil/ffluid/tires 17,000 17,000 18,527 1,527
Concrete products 3,000 3,000 328 (2,672)
Crushed stone & sand 8,000 8,000 8913 913
Asphait 160,000 110,000 74,387 {35,613)
insurance 9,882 9,882 9,276 (606)
Property (contents) insurance 2,071 2,131 2,128 3
Equipment rentalflease 1,000 1,000 420 (580}
Landfill feefdisposition chgs. - 230 230 (0
Motor equipment 98,500 100,780 100,780 -
Other capital outlay - 92,259 92,259 -
Total street repairs and maintenance 939,704 998,072 861,262 {136,810}
Street lighting and signs:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 31,985 89,718 96,593 (3,125)
Qvertime 2,000 2,000 267 (1,733)
Christmas bonus & longevity 288 288 288 (0)
FILCA. 2,125 5,725 5,704 {21
Medicare 497 1,347 1,334 {13}
TCRS contribution 5,031 14,231 14,194 {37)

The notes to financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.
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Qriginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Employee health insurance 11,721 30,338 30,635 297
Employee iife insurance 123 123 - (123)
Workers compensation insurance 1,087 1,757 1,401 {356)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 700 700 733 33
Postal service - 10 9 (1)
Legal notices - 38 38 0
Electrical, plumbing & hdwe. - 115 402 287
Electricity 600,000 576,050 549,774 (26,276)
Natural gas & propane 150 150 212 62
Telephone services - 1,000 437 (563)
Medical services - 2,000 1,675 (325)
Repair & maint. vehicles 500 337 35 (303)
Subscriptions & books 350 350 - (350)
Education seminars & training 400 400 130 270)
Travel business expenses 400 400 - (400)
Office supplies & materials 100 100 172 72
Small tools & equipment 3,000 3,000 2,978 (22)
Janitorial supplies 100 100 - (100)
General operating supplies 30,000 30,000 29,984 (16)
Gasdline & diesel fuel 7,500 7,960 6,290 {1,670
Veh. partsfoilfluiditires 4,000 4,000 2,203 (1,797)
Insurance 378 376 353 (23)
Property (contents) insurance 79 84 81 (3)
Other miscellaneous expenses 195,000 141,000 - (141,000}
Total street lighting and signs 897,512 823,697 745,924 (177,774)
Brush pick-up and snow removal
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 351,076 315,076 314,718 (358}
Overtime 17,500 22,250 22,173 (77}
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 40,000 40,000 35,486 {4,514)
Christmas bonus & longevity 4,703 4,703 3,324 (1,379)
F.1CA. 25623 258623 22,281 (3,343)
Medicare 5,993 5,993 5211 (782)
TCRS contribution 54,797 54,797 49,368 (5,429)
Employee health insurance 113,381 113,381 108,858 (4,523)
Employee life insurance 1,242 1,242 - (1,242)
Workers compensation insurance 11,340 15,717 13,588 (2,129}
Unemployment insurance - 1,213 1,213 (0)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 7,350 7,350 5,933 (1,417
Postal service 50 50 5 {45)
Legai notices 400 400 205 {195)
Telephone services 500 500 362 {138)
Medical services 1,000 1,000 884 (116)
Other professional services 700 700 230 (470)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 15,000 15,000 18,456 3,456
Education seminars & training 400 400 350 {50}
Travel business expenses 500 500 - (500)
Office supplies & materials 100 800 520 (380)
Small tools & equipment 6,500 6,500 6,332 (168)
Janitorial supplies 150 150 - (150)
General operating supplies 1,500 1,500 1,320 (180)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 90,000 96,951 82,015 {14,938)
Veh. parts/oilffluidfires 70,000 70,000 97,916 27,916
Salt/sodium chioride 50,000 50,000 31,174 (18,826)

39




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
insurance 8,611 8,611 8,083 {528)
Property {contents) insurance 1,805 1,855 1,855 (0)
Landfill fee/disposition chgs. 245,000 245,000 218,201 (26,800)
Motor equipment 90,000 138,982 138,982 (0}
Other capital outiay 10,000 10,000 9,500 {500}
Total brush pick-up and snow removal 1,225,221 1,256,344 1,198,541 (67,803)
Sidewalks: -
Other contracted services 25,000 24,550 - (24,550)
General operating supplies - 450 450 .
Concrete preducts 10,000 7,990 418 (7,572)
Crushed stone & sand - 2,010 2,010 0
Total sidewalks 35,000 35,000 2,879 (32,121)
Traffic devices:
Wages & salaries permanent emp, 2,200 192 - (192)
Overtime 8,000 8,000 7,006 (994)
F.I.C.A 632 632 420 (212)
Medicare 148 148 98 (50)
TCRS contribution 1,497 1,497 1,029 (468)
Employee health insurance - 2,008 2,012 4
Postal service - 8 7 n
Electricity 38,000 31,000 14,424 (16,576)
Natural gas & propane 500 500 - (500)
Telephone services - 100 100 {0)
Other professional services 1,500 1,500 - {1,500)
Repairs & maint. communications 4,000 4,000 3,999 @)
Repair & maint. vehicles 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Repair & maint. traffic signals 40,000 40,000 39,762 (238)
Subscriptions & books 250 250 - (250)
Memberships & dues 650 650 140 (510)
Education seminars & training 2,400 2,400 715 (1,685)
Travel business expenses 350 350 191 (159)
Office supplies & materials 200 92 - (92}
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 281 {3,719}
General operating supplies 3,000 3,000 72 (2.928)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 2,500 2,500 124 (2,376)
Veh. parts/oilffluid/tires 3,100 3,100 785 (2,315}
Parts, traffic signals 13,000 13,000 11,923 (1,077)
Other supplies & materials 2,500 2,500 - (2,500)
Total traffic devices: 129,427 122,427 83,088 {(39,339)
Communication shop:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 80,319 80,819 85,508 4,689
Overtime 2,500 2,500 1,519 {981)
Christmas bonus & longevity 741 741 740 N
F.I.C.A. 5,181 5,211 5,257 46
Medicare 1,212 1,222 1,229 7
TCRS contribution 12,267 12,337 12,891 554
Employee health insurance 23,421 22,811 21,176 (1,635)
Employee life insurance 312 312 - (312)
Woaorkers compensation insurance 2,383 2,383 2,801 418

The notes to financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.
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Clothing/uniforms/shoes 1,100 1,100 1,029 (71}
Postal service - 17 16 (1)
Electricity - 3,852 3,077 (775)
Telephone services 400 400 1,219 819
Other professional services 200 200 - {200)
Repairs & maint. communications 350 350 - (350)
Repair & maint. vehicles 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 2,000 2,000 370 (1,630)
Repair & maint. office equip. 1,500 1,500 - (1,500}
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Subscriptions & books 300 300 - {300)
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,500 - (1,500)
Travel business expenses 500 500 - (500}
Other contracted services 500 54 - (54)
Office supplies & materials 300 283 254 (29)
Janitorial supplies 50 50 - {50}
General operating supplies 100 100 93 {7
Gasoline & diesel fuel 2,000 2,083 2,546 463
Veh, partsfoil/fluid/tires 2,000 2,000 149 (1,851)
Insurance 2,070 2,070 1,943 (127)
Property {contents) insurance - 446 446 {0)
Total communication shop 146,206 150,141 142 264 {7.877)
Pavement management system:
Legal notices - 1,018 1,017 (n
Street infrastructure imp. 3,814,000 3,812,982 533,211 (3,279,771)
Total pavement management system 3,814,000 3,814,000 534,228 (3.279,772)
Health inspection and welfare:
Overtime 5,000 3,995 - {3,995}
F.I.C.A. 310 310 - (310)
Medicare 73 73 - (73)
TCRS contribution 734 734 - (734)
Workers compensation insurance - 7,005 7,004 (1)
Education seminars & training 500 279 - (279
Travel business expenses 250 250 - {250)
Small tools & equipment 400 400 390 (10}
Janitorial supplies 250 250 - {250}
General operating supplies 3,000 3,000 3,000 -
Gasoline & diesel fuel 6,500 6,815 3,385 (3,430)
Veh, parts/oil/fluidftires 1,000 1,000 90 (910
insurance general liability 941 941 883 (58)
Property {contents) insurance - 203 203 (0}
Other miscellaneous expenses - 18 18 (1)
Motor equipment 28,000 28,000 26,665 {1,335)
Total health inspections and welfare 46,958 53,273 41,637 {11,636)
Parks and recreation supervision:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 263,987 257,987 258,054 67
Overtime 150 6,150 5,940 (210)
Christmas bonus & longevity 2,721 2,881 2,879 2)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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F.L.CA. 16,545 16,545 16,214 (331)
Medicare 3,869 3,869 3,792 77}
TCRS contribution 39,175 39,175 37,715 {1,460)
Employee health insurance 58,703 58,703 54242 {4,461}
Employee life insurance 984 984 - (984)
Workers compensation insurance 1,273 5,183 4202 (981)
Postal service 3,600 3,600 3,229 (371}
Printing services 300 300 175 (125)
Legal notices 900 900 175 (725)
Electricity - 6,652 5,543 {1,109}
Water & sewer - 739 641 98
Natural gas & propane - 8,520 3,610 4,910
Telephone services - 121 121 0
Medical services 1,200 1,200 121 1,079
Memberships & dues 1,300 1,300 1,155 145
Education seminars & training 1,000 1,000 990 10
Travel business expenses 2,000 2,000 1,514 486
Office supplies & materials - 3,449 3,227 222
Office equipment 1,000 1,000 432 568
Insurance 1,976 1,976 972 1,004
Property (contents) insurance 217 227 223 4
Equipment rentalflease 7,450 7,450 5,225 2,225
Cash variances - 30 30 -
Tree board - 100 88 12
Total parks and recreation supervision 408,350 432 041 410,508 21,533
Ptayground and programs:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 113,387 114,087 114,055 32
Cvertime 200 1,950 1,818 132
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 72,600 77,600 77,434 166
Christmas bonus & longevity 838 1,028 1,026 2
F.I.C.A. 11,596 11,821 11,800 21
Medicare 2,712 2,762 2,759 3
TCRS contribution 16,675 16,890 16,889 1
Employee health insurance 35,071 35,071 34,387 684
Employee life insurance 390 390 0 390
Workers compensation insurance 4,934 15,494 12,800 2,694
Unemployment insurance 0 0 1,984 (1,984)
Postal service 0 1 0 1
Legal notices 0 274 274 0
Electricity 0 4,573 11,760 (7,187}
Water 8 sewer 0 9,718 3,275 6,443
Naturat gas & propane 0 7,800 2,350 5,450
Telephone services BOO 800 1,275 (475)
Medical services 200 200 153 47
Other professional services 1,500 1,500 512 288
Repair 8& maint. bidg./grounds 1,500 11,500 24,095 {12,595)
Memberships & dues 15,000 15,000 12,550 2,450
Education seminars & training 250 250 0 250
Other contracted services 98,500 97,897 87,878 10,019
Office equipment 1,500 1,500 0 1,500
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 3,450 550
Janitorial supplies 0 328 328 0
General operating supplies 58,200 58,200 58,468 (268)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Insurance 11,594 11,594 10,601 993
Property (contents) insurance 2,367 2,367 2,432 (65)
Equipment rental/lease 5,000 5,000 3,635 1,465
Improvements other than bldgs. a 10,000 10,000 -
Machinery & equipment 27,000 27,000 22532 4,468
Total playgrounds and programs 485,814 546,595 530,421 16,174
Parks and maintenance:
Wages & salaries permanent emp, 352,919 352,919 334,137 (18,783}
Overtime 5,000 5,000 639 (4,362}
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 145,000 145,000 131,661 (13,339)
Christmas bonus & longevity 3,747 3,747 3,976 229
FICA. 31,413 31,413 28,368 (3,045)
Medicare 7,347 7,347 6,634 {713)
TCRS contribution 53,093 53,003 48,473 (4,620)
Employee heaith insurance 116,965 116,865 98,962 (18,003)
Employee life insurance 1,384 1,384 - (1,384)
Workers compensation insurance 2,323 14,128 167 (13,961}
Unemployment insurance 14,000 14,000 23,945 9,945
Postal service - 19 18 )]
Legal notices - 681 681 ()]
Electricity - 68,913 63,770 {5,143}
Water & sewer - 19,213 26,342 7,129
Natural gas & propane . 3,600 936 (2,664)
Telephone services 1,500 1,500 2,518 1,015
Medical services - 1,032 1,031 4)]
Other professional services 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Repair & maint. vehicles - 100 72 (28)
Repair/maint. cperaticns equip. 11,000 11,000 12,183 1,183
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds 32,500 32,500 31,843 (557)
Education seminars & training 100 100 - (100)
Other contracted services 41,240 41,240 26,389 {14,851)
Small tools & equipment 8,000 8,000 5,280 {2,720)
Janitorial supplies 11,800 11,800 10,288 {(1,512)
General cperating supplies 33,500 31,768 17,655 {(14,113)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 33,000 36,017 26,150 {9,867)
Veh. parts/oil/ffluidftires 6,500 6,500 7,532 1,032
Splash pad supplies 2,000 2,000 2,700 700
Concrete products 4,000 4,000 1,008 {2,992}
Crushed stone & sand 6,000 6,000 6,503 503
insurance 14,870 14,870 13,958 (912}
Property (contents) insurance 3,116 3,206 3,202 (4)
Equipment rental/lease 2,000 8,000 1,944 (6,056)
Landfill fee/disposition chgs. 500 500 - {500)
Buitding structures 200,000 200,000 128,551 (71.,449)
Motor equipment 62,000 62,000 26,281 (35,719)
Other capital outlay 10,000 10,000 3,150 (6,850)
Total parks and maintenance 1,217,817 1,330,555 1,097,043 (233,512)
Social services:
ALPS 9,500 9,500 9,500 -
Boys & Girls Club, Inc. 15,675 15,675 15,675 -

The notes {o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
CEASE 16,625 16,625 16,625 -
Central Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Child Advocacy 950 950 950 -
Girls, Inc. 11,400 11,400 11,400 -
Helping Hands 7,125 7,125 7,125 -
Keep America Beautiful 19,950 19,950 19,950 .
MATS - 8,400 8,400 -
M-H Child Care Centers 22,800 22,800 22,800 -
New Hope Recovery 4,750 4,750 4,750 -
Rose Center 11,875 11,875 11,875 -
Senior Citizens Center 47,500 47,500 47,500 -
Senior Citizen Hope Assistance 4,750 4 750 4 750 -
Stepping Cut 1,425 5,000 5,000 -
Youth Emergency Shelter 30,875 30,875 30,875 -
Boys & Girls Club Swim Team 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Tennessee Achieves 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Crockett Tavern Association 7,500 7,500 7,500 -
Diversity Task Force 7,000 7,000 7,000 -
Workforce Development 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Project Graduation - 1,000 1,000 -
Totai social services 248,700 262,675 262,675 -
Fixed based operations:
Clothing/uniforms/shoes - 1,362 1,361 1
Postal service 250 250 266 (16}
Legal notices 750 750 66 684
Electricity - 26,508 22,055 4,453
Water & sewer - 17,392 22,975 {5,583}
Natural gas & propane - 10,800 4,363 6,437
Telephone services - 1,270 1,270 0
Other professional services 30,000 30,000 4,065 25,935
Other professional services - “ 2,267 (2,267)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 800 800 891 (91)
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds 30,000 30,000 15,193 14,807
Memberships & dues 600 600 190 410
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,500 450 1,050
Travel business expenses 1,000 1,000 1,127 {127}
Cther contracted services 24,590 24,590 29,869 (5,279)
Office supplies & materials 100 100 - 100
General operating supplies 7,000 4,368 372 3,996
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 1,500 1,500 520 980
Buildings - 975,000 975,000 -
OCther capital outlay 1,193,354 1,193,354 545,687 647,667
Total fixed based operations 1,291,444 2,321,144 1,627,985 693,159
Bond principat:
Debt principal 1,111,000 1,111,000 1,110,165 835
Bond interest 890,340 620,958 178,780 442178
Paying agent fees 40,000 99,292 99,292 0
Total bond principal 2,041 340 1,831,250 1,388,237 443,013

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

General Fund

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Special appropriations:
Animal Control
E-911 District
Summer Feeding Program
Public Library
Economic Development
Emergency Management Agency
TIF Payments

Total special appropriations
Total revenues
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over(under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from issuance of bonds
Total ather financing sources-net
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources (under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Fund baiance - July 1, 2013
Prior period adjustment

Fund balance - July 1, 2013 - as adjusted

Fund balance -June 30, 2014

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
137,890 137,880 137,890 -
187,278 187,278 198,742 (11,464)
90,000 111,160 112,860 {1,700)
257,000 261,500 261,490 10
200,000 210,000 201,550 8,450
45,000 45,000 3,711 41,289
- 34,574 34,574 )
917,168 987,402 950,816 36,586
34,074,648 36,086,338 30,300,249 (5,786,089)
33,922,864 36,007,172 29,762,742 6,244 431
151,784 79,166 537,507 458,342
497 930 497,930 1,452,361 954 431
(642,062) (692,062) (5685,663) (106,399)
(144,132) (194,132) 866,698 848,032
7,652 {114,966) 1,404,206 1,519,172
24 425 304 24,425 304 24,425,304 -
- - (117,501) (117,501)
24 425 304 24,425,304 24,307,803 (117,501)
$ 24432956 $ 24310338 $ 25712009 $ 1,401,671
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Solid Waste Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Original Finai
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenue:
Other local revenue:
Non-rev-fund balance appropriated $ 244 414 § 244414 § - % (244,414)
Insurance and customer reimbursements - - 123,125 123,125
Solid waste fees 1,260,000 1,409,450 1,370,370 {39,080)
Total other local revenue 1,504,414 1,653,864 1,493,495 (160,369)
Expenditures:
Sanitation department:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 378,080 443,080 437,594 5,486
Overtime 6,000 10,800 10,512 288
Christmas bonus & longevity 5,215 5,215 4,185 1,030
F.LC.A, 24,136 24,136 26,775 {2,639)
Medicare 5,645 5,645 6,262 (617)
TCRS contribution 57,149 57,149 65,983 {8,834)
Employee health insurance 117,029 117,029 133,723 (16,694)
Employee life insurance 1,469 1,469 - 1,469
Workers compensation insurance 17,836 23,286 15,013 8,273
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 7,000 7,000 5,865 1,135
Postal service 50 50 24 26
L.egal notices 1,200 1,200 1,240 40y
Water & sewer - 50 8 42
Telephone services 500 500 425 76
Medical services 900 900 723 177
Education seminars & training 200 200 - 200
Other contracted services - 120,000 48,278 71,722
Office supplies & materials 200 700 537 163
General operating supplies 1,250 1,250 837 413
Gasoline & diesel fuel 80,000 85,533 69,831 15,702
Veh. parts/oil/fluid/tires 55,000 55,000 57,610 (2,610)
Solid waste containers 33,000 33,000 32,946 b4
insurance 9,882 9,882 9,276 606
Property {contents) insurance 2,505 2,505 2,128 377
Landfill fee/disposition chgs. 375,000 375,000 360,362 14,638
Motor equipment - - 139,364 {139,364)
Total sanitation department 1,179,246 1,380,579 1,429 501 {48,922)
Curbside recycle:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 68,013 70,013 69,075 938
Overtime 750 1,550 1,443 107
Christmas bonus & longevity 757 757 740 17
F.I.C.A. 4,310 4,310 4267 43
Medicare 1,008 1,008 998 10
TCRS contribution 10,206 10,206 10,119 88
Employee health insurance 23,385 23,385 22,949 436
Employee life insurance 266 266 - 266
Workers compensation insurance 3,529 3,529 2,807 722
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 1,500 1,500 1,102 398
Legal notices 100 100 - 100
Medical services 200 200 134 66

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Travel business expenses
Other contracted services
Office supplies & materials
Smal toois & equipment
Janitorial supplies
Gasoline & diesel fuel
Veh, parts/oiiffluid/tires
Solid waste containers
Insurance
Property (contents) insurance
Motor equipment

Total curbside recycle

Bond principal:
Debt principat
Debt interest
Paying agent fees

Total bond principal

Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfer in
Operating fransfer out

Total other financing sources-net

City of Morristown, Tennessee

Solid Waste Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Excess of revenues and cther financing
sources over {under) expenditures and

other financing uses

Fund batance - July 1, 2013
Prior period adjustment

Fund balance - July 1, 2013 - as adjusted

Fund balance - June 30, 2014

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Original Finai
Budget Budget Actual Variance
200 400 - 400
35,000 37,050 30,729 5,321
300 300 234 66
250 250 211 39
100 100 - 100
12,500 13,388 8,091 5,297
9,000 9,000 4,375 4,625
15,000 15,000 16,974 (1.974)
1,741 1,741 1,634 107
2,534 2,534 476 2,058
100,000 100,000 89,699 401
290,849 296,587 275,956 20,630
25,020 25,870 25,858 12
8,799 8,799 8,604 195
500 500 - 500
34319 35,169 34,462 707
1,504,414 1,712,335 1,739,919 (27,585)
- (58,471) (246,424) (187.,954)
- 50,000 50,000 -
- 50,000 50,000 -
- (8,471) {196,424) {187,954)
398,617 398,617 398,617 -
- - 1,113 1,113
398,617 398,617 399,730 (1,113)
$ 398,617 390,146  § 203,306 $ {189,067)




Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Trade, net of alowances
intertund receivablas
Due from others

QOther accounts raceivable

Current portion of discounted energy units

Other cument assels
Materials and suppfies invenlory

Total current assels

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Invastments

Total restricled asssts
Capital assets:
Plant and equipment in service
|.ess accumulaied deprecialion
Censtruction in progress
Net capital assats
Due from Other Funds
Piant acquisition adjustments, net of
accumulated depreciation
Unamortized debt expense
Other assets
Total noncurrent assats

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Acerual for unbifled revanue

Total assets and defersed cuiflows of resources

Amounts in the "Totat" calumn have been adjusted to reflect the eliminations of internat balances and will not cross-foot.

City of Marristown, Tennessce
Statement of Net Pasition
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -

tnternat

Wastewater Storm Water i Service Fund -
System System Power Sysiem Watar System Broadband Tatak Health lnsurance
$ 7797852 3 3,843,308 $ 12,215159 $ 437077 $ 176,078 $ 28,403,167 k] 1,193.416
- 285,408 8,452,126 - - B,737,534
150,734 - 574,495 189,072 - 924,361
96,101 - 339,047 2,681 2,210 440,008
- - - 12,789 86,558 99,245
140,585 71,708 942 688 458,432 - 1,613,423
8,185,332 4,200,422 22,623,495 5,043,745 264,845 40,217,839 1,183,416
5,108,398 - - 2,910,724 675,961 9,695,083 -
7,177,504 - - - - 7,177,504 .
13,285,902 - - 2.910,724 575,961 16,872,587 -
101,877,555 6,822 851 104,023,776 63,316,012 11,833,183 287,873,377 -
(42,270,676) (3,060,521) (44,712,980) (25,208,986) (5,336,117) (120,589,280) -
59,608,879 3,762,330 59,310,796 38,107,026 6,497,086 167,284,097 -
6,283,314 756,252 924,454 300,741 678,740 7,843,501 -
64,890,193 4,518,562 £0,235,250 38,407,767 7,076,806 175,127,598 -
- - 5,567,003 - - 5,567,003 -
- - 397,197 - - 397,197 -
- 119,751 128,868 - - 248,619 -
78,176,095 4,638,333 66,328,318 41,318,491 7,761,767 198,213,004 -
86,361,427 8,838,755 88,851,813 46,362,238 8,016,612 236,430,843 1,193,416
559,230 54,755 1,570,874 196,492 - 2,381,351 -
$ 86,920,657 $ 8,893,510 $ 90,422 687 § 46,560,728 $ 8016812 5 240812194 ) 1,193,416
48

The notes ta financial statements are an integzat part of this statement.




Liabilities
Current liabifitles:
Accounts payabla:
Trade
{nlerfung payables
Gily of Maoristown
Customer deposits
Accrued payroll related liabilities
Other accrued liabilities
Gurrent portion of contraciual obligation
Gurrent partion of capital lease obligation
Gurrent poriion of long-term dabt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued post retirement benefit obligation
Due to other funds
Capial lease obligation, less currant porlion
Contraciual obligation, less current portion
Long-term debt - less current porlion
Coniracluai liability
Premium on bonds payeble
Compensated abssnces

Tetal non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Defersed revenues

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Reslricled
Unrestricted net posilion (deficity

Totai net position {deficil)

Total liabilities, defarred inflows of resourcas,

and net position

City of Morristown, Tennassee

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2014

Amounts in the "Total" column have been adjusted to refiect the efiminations of intemal balances and will not cross-foat.

Governmental
Business-lyps Activities Activities -
Enterprise Funds Internal
Wastewater Storm Water Service Fund -
System System Powaer System Water System Broadband Total Health Insurance
$  2,424955 § - $ 6815058 % 135,258 478,770 3 9,654,041 3 175,874
107,354 - 242,512 - 574,485 924,361 -
33,753 - 213,105 - - 246,858 -
- - 3,666,842 - 79,300 3,746,142 -
137,084 2,545 1,607,138 468,939 162,180 2,277,867 -
236,777 38,832 218,585 32,503 111,583 638,350 -
81,855 - - - - 81,955 -
- - - - 18,877 18,877 -
3,414,852 212,642 1,079,036 855,784 124,947 5,687,951 -
6,436,530 253,920 43,642,276 1,493,574 1,550,112 23,276,412 175,874
9,046 - 419,085 80,846 143343 652,420 -
- - - - 5,567,003 5,567,003 -
- - - - 57,606 57,606 -
2,405,261 - - - . 2,406,261 -
54,264,691 4,650,714 17,646,589 13,662,687 5,356,429 96,473,310 .
- 224682 - - - 224,602 -
- 2,397 - - - 2,397 -
66,6¥9,198 4,877,793 18,065,674 13,633,633 11,126,381 104,382,679 -
63,115,728 5,131,713 31,607,950 15,127,207 12 676,493 127,659,091 175,674
- - - - 182,455 182 455 -
18,009,336 {569,356) 41,509,625 26,909,020 2,191,908 88,050,533 -
5,795,583 4,331,153 17,305,112 4,522,501 (7,034,244} 24,920,115 1,017,542
23,804,929 3,781,797 58,814,737 31,431,521 (4,842,336} 112,970,648 1,017,542
3 8692065/ § B893510 5 90,422,687 $ 455658728 8,018,612 § 240,812,194 § 1,103,416
49

The nates to financiai statements are an integral part of this statement.




Operating revenues:
Melered sales
Broadband sales
Intartund services provided
Charges for services
Other operaling revanues
Taotal operating revenues

Opsrating expenses:
Power purchased
Operalions
Maintenance
interfund services used
Depreciation and amartization
Taxes
Insurance <laims and expenses
Miscellanecus
Total operaling expenses

Operating income (loss)

Other income (expense):
Interest income
Financing cost
Interest expensa
Net oclher income (expanse)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Contributions

TVA load controf reimbursement
Grant income

Transfers in

Transfers out ({ax equivalent payments ta

City of Morristown)
Changes in net position

Nat posilion at beginning of year,
as previously stated

Frior period adjustment

Net pesition at beginning of year,
as restaled

Net position - ending

Ameounts in the "Total" column have been adjusied fo reflect the eliminations of intermnal balancas and will not cross-fool.

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Proprietary Funds

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internaft

Wastewater Storm Water Service Fund -
Systemn System Power Syatem Water Systern Broadband Total Health [nsurance

$ 12,658,593 & 13230147 & 75425515 & 6,449,809 3 - § 95862064 -
- - - - 7.629,190 7,629,190 -

- - 1,189,573 187.463 921,063 - -

- - - - - - 4,087,537

420,415 2,016 1,545,209 225643 386,742 2,580,025 -
13,077,008 1,332,163 78,160.297 6,862,915 8,936,935 106,071,278 4,087,537
- - 62,661,461 - - 62,661,481 -

4,663,430 484,148 5,407,787 3,622,312 6,181,982 20,359,729 -
766,285 68,158 2,160,642 673,674 238,941 3,907,900 -
200,741 - 847,454 287,505 962,339 - -
2,500,645 143,708 4,572,640 1,852,723 372,087 9,150,791 -

- - 305,357 - 87,683 393,040 -

. . B R - - 4,170,328

- 653 - - - 653 -

8,140 1681 896,666 75,855,379 6,136,414 7,843012 96,473,593 4,170,328
4,936,847 535,497 2,204,518 726,501 1,093,923 3,597,686 (82,791)
158,042 22,135 31,537 11,673 1,669 225,088 -
(222674) - (105,262} (32,011} (359,967) -
(904,962) {135,466) (57,322} (438,956) (32,416} {1,568,122) -
(969,564) (113,339) {131,067) (427 283) (62,728} (1,704,004 -
3,087,253 522,166 2,073,851 209,218 1031,195 7,093,683 82,791)
139,284 - - 53,450 - 192,734 -

- 331,552 - - 331,562 -

(304,820) (24,024) (1.087.397) {36.120) - (1,452,361) -
3,801,717 498,141 1,318,006 316,548 1,031,195 6,965,607 (82,791}
20,003,212 3,263,656 57,496,731 31,114,973 [5.B73,531) 106,005,041 1,100,333
20,003,212 3,263,656 57,496,731 31,114,973 (5,873,531 106,005,041 1,100,333
§ 93,804,929 & 3,761,797 § 58,814,737 § 31431521 § (4842.336) § 112970648 1,017,542
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The notes to financiai statements are an integral part of this statement.




Cash flows from operating activities:
{ash received from customers
Cash received from City of Momistown
Cash paid to suppliers
Claims and premmiums paid
Cash paid lo employaes
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash NMows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to Gity of Morristown {tax equivalent
paymentis}
TVA load canlref reimbursement
Long-term porion of compensated absences
Net cash fiows from noncapital financing activities

Cash Hows from investing activities:
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents
Sale (purchase) of investmants

Nat cesh flows from investing aclivities

Cash flows from capital and rejated
financing activities:
Band proceeds
Payments an capital lease abligations
Unamorized bond premium
Debt issuance cost expense
Net additions 1o capital assets
tnterfund {repayments} advances
State of Tennessee grant funds
Contributions
Principal payments an fong term debt and
contractual obligation
Inlzrest paid on long term debt
Financing costs paid on long-term debt
Praceeds from long term borrowings
Net cash flows from financing activities

Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivatents, ending

City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funils

Gevernmental
Actjvities -

Internal

Wastewater Storm Water Power Water Broadband Service Fund -
System System System System System Total Health Insurance

S 14,177.850 & 1293847 § 77244727 % 6,986,361 3 0,944,318 § 108,647,073 3 4,094,330
33,753 - 273418 - - 307,171 -
(4,846,595) (499,978) (66,248,339} (3,216,718} {6,024,219) {83,835,849) -
- - - - - - (4,123,077}

(317,809) (1188,246) {5,034,128) (1,433.758) {1,385,977) (8,359,718} -
§,047,399 605,593 6,235,678 2,335,885 1,534,122 19,758,677 {28,747}
(304,820) - (1,087,397} {36,120) - (1,428,337) -

- - 331,552 - - 331,582 -

- {12,492} - - - (12,482) -

(304,820} {12,492) (755,845) (36,120) - (1,109,277} -
158,042 22,135 31,637 11,673 1,699 226,086 -
4,486,211 - - - - 4,486,211 -
4,644,253 22,135 31,637 11,673 1,699 4,711,297 -

- - (14,941) {14,941) -

- (24,964) - - - {24,964) -
(12,65%,244) (1,789,835} (8,011,413} (889,181) (1.290,106} (25,631,479) -
273,734 (346,361) 460,855 (185,921) {231,294) (29.187) -
139,284 - - 53,450 - 192,724 -
(2,642,851} {211,345) {1,024,936) (832,480) (120,047) {4,831,659) -
{904 962} (135,465) (57,322) {438,956) {32,416) (1,569,121} -
{222,674) - (105,282) - (32,011) {350.967) -
5,309,336 - 3467524 - 1,000,000 9,776,660 B
{10,699,377) {2,507,970) (6,270,474) (2,293,088} (720,816) {22,491,724) -
2,687,455 {1,892.734) {#59,104) 18,350 815,006 868,973 (20,747;
11,218,795 5,736,040 12,874,263 7,263,145 37,034 37,229,277 1,222,163

§ 13906250 § 3,843 306 $ 42215153 § 7281495 % 852,040 § 38,008,250 3 1,193,416
51

The notes lo financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 310, 2014

Governmentat
Business-Type Activities Aglivities -
Enterprise Funds internal
Wastewater Storm Water Power Water Broadband Service Fund -
System System System System System Total Health Insurance
Reconciliation of operating Income to
net cash provided hy operating
activities:
Operaling income {loss) $ 4938847 § 635497 $ 2204918 8 726501 5 1093923 § 9507686 k3 {82,791)
Adjustments te recanclle operating income to
net cash flows from operaling aclivilies:
Degpreciation and amorlization 2500645 143,708 4 572 648 1,562,723 372067 9,150,791 -
Provision for josses on accounls receivable - - ' 192,230 - - 192,230 -
Redempiion of discounted energy units - - . N - - .
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: )
Accounts receivable 1,207,228 {41,347) (216,193) - - 942,609 6,425
Leans receivable - - - . - - -
Accrual of unbilled revenus {10,288) 5017 46,744 4218 - 44 693 -
Materials and supplies inventory (18,865) 63,351 {75,088) (66,176} - {96,756} -
Oiher asseats {96,107) 99,813 4,052 58,042 65,606 -
Trade accourts payable 347,935 (194,108) {834,339} (29,400) (5,636) (716,646) 47,619
Loans payabla - - - - . - -
Customer deposits and prepayments - - 210,743 149,228 {745} 329,226 -
Other fiabilities 170,995 (8,527) 35,182 24,739 16,471 240,860 -
Net cash provided hy operating activities $ 9047399 § 605593 5 6235678 $ 2335885  § 1,504,122 $ 19758677 $ {28,747}
Noncash disclosure:
Acquisition of capital assets $ 20878681 & - 5 127,168 $ - § 187,862 5 2402651 $ -
Praceeds receivable from long-term borrowings - - 121,726 - - 121,726 -
The netes to financial statements are an integral parl of this statement. 52




Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest and dividends receivable
Grants receivable
Investments at fair value:
Mutua! funds - short-term
Mutual funds - equity
Mutual funds - fixed income

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to LAMTPO

Total Liabilities

City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2014

Net position held in trust for pension benefits

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Post-Employment
Benefits Trust

LAMTPO
Agency Fund

$ 346 $ 455,620
- 139,690

7,391 -

132,901 -

83,006 -
223,644 $ 595,310
- $ 590
- 594,720
- 3 595,310

3 223,644
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2014

Post-Employment

Benefits Trust

Additions
Employer contributions 3 375,832
investment earnings:
Dividends and capital gains ) 11,406
Net increase in fair value of investments 15,506
Total additions 402,544
Deductions
Benefits 375,632
Administrative expenses 4,560
Total deductions 380,192
Change in net position 22,352
Net position - beginning of the year, as adjusted 201,292
Net position - end of the year 3 223,644

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Morristown, Tennessee (the City} is a municipal corporation operating under the Council-Administrator
form of government. The City’s major operations include police and fire protection, parks and recreation, public
works, and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates water, power, wastewater
{Note 5) and broadband systems (the System). The water, power, wastewater and broadband systems are
operated by a separate board (Morristown Utilities Commissions, the Commission, or MUC}), which is appointed
by the Mayor and approved by City Council.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
{GAAP}. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state
and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also
required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through
November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Althaugh the
City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and
enterprise funds, the City has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP
and used by the City are discussed beiow.

in June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) unanimously approved Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. Certain of
the significant changes in the statement include the following.

+« The financial statements include:

s« A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the City's overall
financial position and results of operations.

e¢ Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the City’s activities, including
infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.).

= A change in the fund financial statements to focus on major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including notes to financial
statements). The City elected to implement both the general provisions and infrastructure provisions.

A. Reporting Entity
These financial statements present the City (the primary government). There are no component units.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements {i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of changes in
net position} report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the
effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from the government-wide statements. Governmental activities,
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which are funded to a significant extent by user fees and charges for support.

Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The statement of
activities demonstrates the extent to which the direct expenses of ‘each function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided or given by the function or segment and 2} grants
and contributions that are restricted for meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
Although they are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, separate financial statements are
also provided for the fiduciary funds. Each majer governmental enterprise fund is reported in a separate
column in the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

C. Measurement, Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the econemic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are reported when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and other restricted revenues are recognized as revenue when all eligible requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reperted using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal year.
Similar to the accrual basis of accounting, expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due. Compensated absences, consisting of unused vacation pay and other
compensated absences, are not included in the governmental basis financial statements, but are shown as a
reconciling item and included in the city-wide financial statements. inventory costs are reported in the period
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmentai revenue, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenue during the
current fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and avaitable only when cash is
received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. tt accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Sofid Waste Fund is the fund used to pay for ail solid waste expenditures. Solid waste revenues are
provided by monthly charges to customers and additional can purchases. Transfers from the general
fund are made for any remaining deficit. Fund balance of the solid waste fund is assigned for solid waste
operations.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Power System Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s electric distribution activities.
The Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the government's water distribution activities.
The Wasfewater System Fund accounts for the activities of the government's sewage treatment
operations.
The Broadband System Fund accounts for the activities of the government's cable and telephone
services.
The Storm Water Sysfemn Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s storm water management
activities.
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
The Narcotics Fund and Solid Waste Fund are required by the State of Tennessee.
The CDBG Fund has been established to account for expenditure of CDBG grant funds.

Special revenue funds receive revenue from designated sources and transfers from the General Fund
and are expended for designated purposes.

The Fiduciary Fund is an agency fund fo account for the City's role as the fiscal agent for LAMTPO.
The Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for the City's health insurance services.

Standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1988, generally are followed in
both government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not
confiict with or contradict guidance of the Government Auditing Standards. Governments alsc have the option
of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject
to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidelines.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's enterprise funds and
various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and preducing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as revenues the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating
expenses of the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation of capital assets. Al revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted sources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first and unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The government’'s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements and other activities that
are outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds” or “advances
to/from other funds.” These have been eliminated in the government-wide statement of net position.

All trade receivables were considered collectible at June 30, 2014, Based on experience, an allowance
for uncollected property taxes of 1% of the tax levies for the past ten years is maintained.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1% on property values assessed as of the same date. Bills for
those taxes are usuaily mailed on July 1%, A 2% discount s offered for payment within thirty days after
the bills are mailed. On December 1%, any unpaid taxes become definquent and a penalty of 4.5% is
assessed with an additional 1% per month for additional delinquency. After ane year and eleven months,
any unpaid taxes are sent to the County Clerk and Master for collection,

inventories

Ali inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted Assels

This represents cohstraints placed on the use of assets through external restraints imposed by creditors
(such as through debt covenants) or by grants, contributors, or laws and regutations of other governments
or constraints imposed by law or enabling legislation.

Income Taxes

The Power and Water Systems, as well as the Wastewater and Storm Water funds are exempt from
federal and state income taxes since they are comprised of funds of the City, a nontaxable entity.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.
The Broadband System is exempt from federal income taxes; however, it is required by TCA 7-52-606 to
pay franchise and excise tax to the State of Tennessee.

Capital Assefs

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) aré reported in the applicable governmentat or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets used in the government-wide
financial statements are defined as those having an individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
life in excess of two years. Estimated useful lives for the major classes of equipment are as follows:

Infrastructure (roads and streets) 20 years
Automotive 6 years
Other mobile equipment 12 to 15 years
Computer equipment 510 7 years
Buildings 15 to 50 years
Transmission equipment, fixtures and devices 25 to 50 years
Distribution transformers, meters, fixtures and devices 5 to 50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5to 25 years
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Plant acquisition adjustments represent the excess of cost over net book value of utilities properties
acquired from other utilities districts. Such excess is amortized over the estimated useful life of the
related property (pericds of up to 20 years).

7. Compensated Absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but not used sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumutated sick leave since the government does not have a policy to pay
any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Morristown Utilities Commission’s policy is to recognize the cost of both vacation pay and sick leave
benefits as earned. In the event of termination or retirement, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated
vacation days. In general, accumulated vacation days are limited to thirty days. Employees are
reimbursed for accumulated sick leave upon retirement or termination at an equivalent salary rate of
100%, 50% or 33-1/3% depending on the date earned. Sick leave accumulation is limited to ninety days.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financia! statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

9. Fund Equity
The City's fund balance is classified into the following categories:

Non-spendable Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as non-spendable in the accompanying financial
statements represent amounts for permanent fund principal restrictions, inventory, prepaid expendiiures,
advances to other funds, and noncurrent notes receivable.

Restricted Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as restricted are the result of externally imposed
restrictions placed upon current resources by state statuies, creditors, bond covenants, donors, or
grantors.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Committed Fund Balance — Fund balances reporied as committed are self-imposed restrictions placed
upen certain resources by the City's highest level of decision making authority (City Council} and cannot
be used for any other purpose, modified, or rescinded uniess formal action {ordinance) is approved by the
City Council.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

10.

11.

Assigned Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as assigned are intended for certain purposes as
approved by management. City Council has a fund balance poticy that allows amounts to be assigned or
re-assigned by management.

Unassigned Fund Balance — In accordance with GAAP, the general fund is the only governmental fund
that reports an unassigned fund balance. The unassigned fund batance has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to a specific purpose within the general fund,

When committed, assigned or unassigned fund balance amounts are available for use, it is the City's
policy to use the committed fund balance first; the assigned fund balance second; and then the
unassigned fund balance as needed.

Net Position of Morristown Utilities Commission

» Netinvestment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding bafances of any bonds, mortgages, notes
or other borrowings that are attributabie to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at
year-end, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent
proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion
of the debt or deferred inflows of resources is included in the same net position component as the
unspent proceeds,

s Restricted — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.

+ Unrestricted — This component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows
or resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted components of net position.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources.

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes repert a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources {expensefexpenditure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category which is the accrual for unbified revenue,

in addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s} and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category. These revenues are from current and delinquent property taxes. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the pericd that the amounts become availabie.

NOTE 2 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental
funds and the government-wide statement of net position.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financiat Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued}

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balance-total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscat year-end.

Around the first of March, the budget process begins, with the City Administrator giving direction to
department heads. Toward the end of March, Department heads submit their proposed budgets, and
these are reviewed by the City Administrator, who makes the final decisions before submission to City
Council. City Council has work sessions and makes their revisions and publishes the proposed budget in
the focal newspaper. Before June 30, City Council adopts the budget ordinance with two readings.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and depariment, but the budget ordinance is on
the fund level. The government’s depariment heads may make transfers of appropriations within their
department. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. Management can transfer amounts
between departments. City Council amended the original budget, and the original and final amounts are
presented in the financial statements included in this report.

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and investments

At year-end, deposits and shori-term investments were as follows:

Cash and
Equivalents
Government type funds $13,823,418
Enterprise type funds 28,403,167
Totals $38,393,449

As of June 30, 2014, all of Morristown Utilities Commission's deposits were covered by the bank collateral
pool administered by the State Treasurer. Banks participating in the pool report the aggregate balance of
their public fund accounts to the State. Coliateral to secure these deposits must be pledged to the State
Treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are
pledged in aggregate rather than against each individual account. Public fund accounts covered by the
pool are considered entirely insured or collateralized.

As of June 30, 2014, the Water System and Broadband System have restricted cash and cash
equivalents totaling $2,910,724 and $675,961, respectively. The Wastewater System has restricted cash
and cash equivalents totaling $6,108,398 and restricted short-term investments of $7,177,504 as of June
30, 2014. The restricted assets consist of unspent bond proceeds described in Note 4.J.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

As of June 30, 2014, all of Morristown Utilities Commission's investments were rated in the two highest
categories by a nationally recognized rating agency as required by statutes of the State of Tennessee,
except for $500,920 in taxable municipal securities of the Wastewater System, which were subsequently
liquidated at their carrying value.

The City’s deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance limits as of June 30, 2014, were covered by the bank
collateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the State of Tennessee.

The City has repurchase agreements with First Tennessee Bank whereby City funds are invested
overnight in securities of the U.S. Treasury Department. At June 30, 2014, the City had $2,771,250 at
First Tennessee Bank invested in these securities and has included these in cash and cash equivalents.

B. Receivables and Real Estate — Non-operating

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major funds and nonmajor in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Solid  Non-Major and Internal
General Waste Other Funds  Enterprise Service Total

Receivables:
Taxes $10,289,284 $ - % - $ - % - $10,289,284
Accounts 2,735,524 128,002 3815 8,737,534 - 11,604,875
Grants - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
Gross receivables 13,024,808 128,002 3,815 8,737,534 - 21894159
Less: Allowance for bad debt {455,866) - - - - {455,866)
Net receivables $12,568,942 $128,002 § 3,815 88,737,534 § - $21,438,293

Included in taxes receivable of the General Fund is property taxes of $9,117,321 that were assessed as
of January 1, 2014, but will not be billed untit after June 30, 2014, There is an offsetting deferred income
for the above balance.

Real estate — non-operating is an inventory of industrial park fand held for re-sale. The balance at June
30, 2014, was $11,729 522,
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June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

C. Capitai Assets

Capital assets of the City's primary government were as follows;

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 7,830,929 $ 8,790 $ - $ 7,839,719
Construction in progress - 815,278 - 815,278
Total capital assets not being depreciated 7,830,928 824,068 - 8,654,997
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 18,817,099 975,000 - 19,792,099
Improvements other than buildings 12,163,807 7.252 - 12,171,059
Machinery and equipment 11,595,035 1,661,844 (273,401) 12,983,478
Infrastructure 45,331,052 2,968,180 - 48,299,232
Total capital assets being depreciated 87,906,993 5,612,276 (273,401} 93,245,868
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (7,155,971) {344,769) - (7,500,740}
Improvements other than buildings (10,948,464) (128,208) - (11,076,670}
Machinery and equipment (9,114,824) {653,165) 111,848 (9,656,140}
tnfrastructure (17,496,680) {1,967,211) - (19,463,901}
Total accumulated depreciaticn (44,715,049) {3,093,351) 111,849 (47,697,451}
Net capital assets being depreciated 43,191,044 2,518,925 {161,552) 45,548,417
Total capital assets-government activities $ 51,021,873 $ 3,342,993 $ (161,552) $ 54,203,414
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,448,205 $ 23,570 $ - $ 2471775
Construction in progress 10,795,128 26,830,720 {29,782,347) 7,843,501
Totaj assets not being depreciated 13,243,333 26,854,290 {29,782,347) 10,315,276
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 20,151,818 104,572 - 20,256,380
Transmission and distribution 200,400,933 28,542,142 (905,802) 228,037,273
Furniture, fixiures and equipment 34,996,886 3,167,783 (1,075,556) 37,089,113
Total capital assets being depreciated 255,549,637 31,814,497 (1,981,358) 285,382,776
Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (6,432,774) (376,579 - (6,809,353)
Transmission and distribution (89,745,163) (6,308,226) 948,561 (95,104,828}
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (16,474,271 (3.037,486) 848,977 {18,662,780)
Total accumulated depreciation {112,652,208) (9.722,291) 1,797,538 (120,576,961)
Net capital assets being depreciated 142,897,429 22,092,206 (183,820} 164,805,815
Total net capital assets - business
fype activities 156,140,762 48,946,496 (29,966,167) 175,121,091
Total net capital assets $207,162,735 $52,289,489 $(30,127,719) $229,324,505
Depreciation expense was charged to government activities as follows:
General government $ 314,638
Public safety 327,295
Public works 2,289,568
Parks and recreation 67,340
Airport 94,510
Totat “$ 3.093351
Wastewater $ 2,579,855
Storm water fund 143,708
Water and electric power 6,517,336
Broadband 481,392
Total “$ 9722291

The provision for depreciation does not include depreciation on transportation equipment. Those
amounts are reported as operations expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred. The depreciation
on transportation equipment not included in depreciation expense previously noted was $392,395 for the
power system, $96,525 for the water system, $70,210 for the wastewater system, and $109,325 for the
broadband system. During 2014 interest in the amount of $310,000 related to construction projects of
MUC has been capitalized.
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NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

D. Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Governmental Business Type Total
Accounis payable $ 231,295 $ 9,654,041 $ 9,885336
Accrued payroll and other liabilities 155,795 2,916,217 3,072,012
Total $ 387,090 $ 12,570,258 $ 12,857,348

E. interfund receivables, advances, payables, and transfers
The interfund receivables and payables as of June 30, 2014, are as follows:

The first item represents an interfund loan between the breadband system and power system (see note 4-
J).

The next three items represent temporary operating cash advances between the power system, water
system, and wastewater system.

The receivable from the wastewater system represents in lieu and operating costs. The receivable from

the power system represents routine operating costs paid by the City and billed to the power system.
These are routine receivables and do not constitute loans.

Receivable From Payable to Purpose Amount
Broadband System Power System interfund loan $6,141,498
Power System Water System Operating and maint. costs 91,718
Power System Wastewater System Operating and maint. costs 150,794
Wastewater System Water System Operating and maint. costs 107,354
Wastewater System General Fund In leu of tax 33,753
Power System General Fund Operating costs 213,105

$6,738,222
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The interfund transfers were as follows:

Fund Purpose Transferin  Transfer Qut
Governmental:
General Fund Operating Transfer $1,452,361 $ 585663
Other Funds Operating Transfer 586,663
Enterprise Funds:
Power System in lieu of tax 1,087,397
Water System in lieu of tax 36,120
Storm Water in lieu of tax 9,024
Sewer in lieu of tax 304,820
Storm Water Administrative Expenses 15,000

$2,038,024 $ 2,038,024

All items represent duly appropriated operating transfers. The fransfers from the power fund, water fund
and wastewater fund to the general fund are for in leu of tax payments that are required to be accounted
for as transfers by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Transfers from the storm water fund
were for in lieu of tax payments and reimbursement of administrative costs.

F. Post-Retirement Healthcare Benefits

City of Morristown — excluding Power, Water, Wastewater, and Broadband Systems

RETIREE MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION iINSURANCE PLAN PROVISIONS:

Type of Coverage:

a. Plan Types:

b. Eligibility:

c. Benefit/Cost Sharing:

d. Spouse Benefit:

e. Surviving Spouse Benefit:
f. Annual Premiums:

Self-funded Medical, Dental and Vision

Age 60 and 10 years of service or 30 years of service
until Medicare eligible.

Employer pays 85% of medical premium and 100% of dental and
vision premiums. For employees retiring after June 30, 2010,
the employer will pay 2.84% of medical premiums for each
year of service up to a maximum of 85%.

Yes, while retiree is eligible.
None
Average Medical: Retiree $5,164; Spouse $5,164

Average Dental: Retiree $304; Spouse $304
Average Vision: Retiree $78; Spouse $34
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1) GASB 45 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS - ESTIMATED

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

Interest on net OPEB Obligation

Adjustment to ARC

Annual OPEB Cost (expense) (1 + 2 + 3)
Contributions made (assumed middle of year)
increase in net OPEB Obiligation (4 - 5)

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year (6 + 7)

N RN 2

*Contribution made was assumed to equal Expected Benefit Payments

71172013 -
6/30/2014

$ 375,632

375,632
(375,632)

5 -

The annuai OPEB Cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the Net
OPEB obligation for fiscal years ending June 30, 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014 are as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual QPEB Net OPEB
Year Annual Cost OPEB Covered Cost % of
Ending OPEB Cost Contributions Obligation PayroH Payroll
6/30/2014 $ 375632 100.0% $ - $ 11,683,168 3.2%
6/30/2013 $ 376,550 100.0% $ - $ 11,398,213 3.3%
6/30/2012 $ 468,493 100.0% $ - $ - 0.0%
6/30/2011 $ 455797 100.0% $ - $ - 0.0%
Funded Status and Funding Progress
UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll {AAL)
Date (a) {b) {b -a) {(a/b) {c) ((b - a)ic)
1/1/2007 $ . $ 5,333,339 $ 5,333,339 0.0% N/A N/A
07/0110 212,913 5,093,035 4,880,122 4.2% N/A N/A
Methods and Assumptions
Funding Interest Rate 7.00%
2012 Medical/Rx Trend Rates 9.00%
Ultimate Medical/Rx Trend Rates 5.00%
Year Ultimate Trend Rates Reached 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Eniry Age Normal
Annual Payroll increase 2.50%
The Remaining Amoriization Period at June 30, 2014 (closed) 24.95
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1. Eunding interest Rate: An interest rate of 7.00% was used.
2. Mortality: The mortality rates are from the RP-2000 Combined

Fully Generational Mortality Table with projection scale AA.

3. Retirement Rates: It was assumed that the following percentage of eligible
employees would retire each year:

Age Rate Age Rate

50-54 15% * 61 11.5%
55 15.0% 62 21.5%

56-57 3.0% 63 14.5%
58 4.0% 64 16.0%
59 6.5% 65 29.0%
60 9.0% 66+ N/A

* 35% assumed for police and firemen with 30 years of service.

4. Disability Rates: None
5. Termination Rates: Based on age and service:
Age Male Female

20 15.7% 18.7%
25 12.4% 14.9%
0 91% 11.1%
35 58% 7.3%
40 25% 3.5%
45 22% 3.0%
50 1.98% 2.4%
55 16% 1.9%

6. Health Care Trend Rates: It was assumed that health care costs would increase in accordance

with the trend rates in the following table.

Vision &
Medical Dental
Year Rates Rates
2012 9.0% 5.0%
2013 8.0% 5.0%
2014 7.0% 5.0%
2015 6.0% 5.0%
2016+ 5.0% 5.0%
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7. Participation Rate: It was assumed that 100% of the current active employees covered

under the active pfan on the day before retirement would enroll in the
retiree medical plan upon refirement.

8. Percent Married: ft was assumed that 40% of the male and 40% of the female
employees who elect retiree health care coverage for themselves
would also elect coverage for their spouse upon retirement. it was
assumed that male spouses are three years older than their wives
and female spouses are three years younger than the retiree. For
current retirees, actual census information was used.

9. Actuarial Value of Assets: N/A

10. Per Capita Claims Cost: Conventional insured equivalent premiums were age-graded on the

current participants in the Medical plan. Further details of the annual
per capita claims cost are shown below:

Age Male Female

50 4,854 5,600
51 5,043 5,705
52 5,240 5,814
53 5,447 5912
54 5,665 6,014
55 5,854 6,116
56 6,131 6,221
57 6,374 6,327
58 6,610 6,483
59 6,854 6,647
60 7,108 6,814
61 7,370 6,981
62 7,643 7,156
63 7,789 7,294
64 7,938 7,432

11. Administrative Expenses: Included in premiums used.

12. Participant Salary increases: 4.00% annually

13. Payroll Growth Rate: 2.50% annually
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Actuarial Cost Method

An Actuarial Cost Method develops an orderly allocation of the actuarial present value of benefits
payments over the working lifetime of the participants in the plan. The actuarial present value of benefits
allocated to a particular fiscal year is called the Normal Cost. The actuariat present value of benefits
allocated to alt periods prior to a valuation date is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability is amortized over future years in accordance with the employer's established
accounting policy.

The Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method is used in this valuation. Under this method, the Actuarial Present
Value of the Projected Benefits of each individual included in the Actuarial Valuation is allocated on a
level basis over future earnings of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age(s). The portion
of this Actuarial Present Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost. The portion of this
Actuarial Present Value not provided for at a valuation date by the Actuarial Present Value of future
Normal Costs is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability.

The amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability has been determined as a level percentage of
the projected payroll of active plan members. At each valuation, a new amortization base is created
equal to the excess of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over the remaining balances of prior
amortization bases. The new base is amortized over 30 years. The equivalent single amortization period
for all components combined may not exceed the maximum acceptable period of 30 years.

Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at
the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the employer and plan members
to that point.

Actuarial valuations for the OPEB plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan refiect a long-term perspective.

G. Morristown Utilities Commission (Water, Power, Wastewater and Broadband Systems} Post-
Empioyment Benefits

The Systems provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB), in accordance with its employee benefits
plan, to all eligible retirees.

Current accounting guidance requires the recognition of Habilities for OPEB over the employment of
participants rather than as premiums are paid. The Power, Water, Wastewater and Broadband Systems
recognized $62,987, $17,068 and $9,046 and $29,208, respectively, for these benefits in 2014,

The Systems’ OPEB is a single employer defined benefit plan and is not required to issue a separate
financial report.
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Plan Description

The Systems provide medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to retirees. Employees who retire at
age 55 with 10 years of service or at age 65 with five years of service are eligible to participate. The
Systems pay the same monthly premium amount that is paid for active employees for the retiree’s
dependents medical premiums. The retiree's spouse is also eligible for medical benefits (same as retiree)
as long as the retiree is eligible (there are no surviving spouse benefits). The life insurance benefit
available to retirees is $5,000. The average annual medical and dental premium is $5,400 and $411,
respectively.

Funding Policy

The Systems fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and do not intend to contribute in excess of the
annual premiums. The annual required contribution (ARC) is an actuarially determined amount that
represents a level of funding which, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation

Power Water Wastewater Broadband
1. Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 105,764 $ 34,040 $ 10,192 $ 30460
2. interest on net OPEB Obligation 14,244 2,555 - 4,565
3. Adjustment o ARC {18,150) (3,256) - {5,817)
4. Annual OPEB Cost (expense) {1 + 2 + 3} 101,878 33,339 10,192 29,208
5. Contributions made (assumed middie of year) (38,891) (16,271) (1,146) -
6. Increase in net OPEB Obiigation (4 - 5) 62,987 17,068 9,046 29,208
7. Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 356,088 63,878 - 114,135
8. Net OPEB Obligation - end of year (6 + 7) 3 419,085 $ 80,946 $ 9,046 $ 143,343
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The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB
obligation is as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Net
Annual Cost OPEB
Fund OPEB Cost Contributed Obligations

2014

Power System $ 101,878 38.2% $ 419,085
Water System 33,339 48 8% 80,946
Wastewater System 10,192 11.2% 9,046
Broadband System 29,208 0.0% 143,343
2013:

Power System $ 109,042 19.8% 5 356,098
Water System 31,628 13.1% 63,878
Broadband System 26,595 0.0% 114,135
2012

Power System $ 103,592 18.0% $ 268,594
Water System 30,084 41.0% 36,395
Broadband System 25112 0.0% 87,540

Funding Status and Funding Progress

UAAL as a
Actuariai Percentage
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded of Covered
Actuarial Vatue of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payroli
Valuation Assets {AAL) {UAAL) Ratjo Payroll (AAL}
System Date [E) (b} b - a) {alb} {c) {{b - ajic)
Pawer 71{2013 & - 5 939,342 $ 939,342 0.0% $ 4,089,606 23%
Water 71112013 - 330,210 330,210 0.0% 1,221,906 27%
Wastewater 17172014 - 153,876 153,876 0.0% 563,274 26.4%
Breadband 71112013 - 89,022 89,022 0.0% 1,076,414 8.3%

72




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The actuarial methods and assumptions used were applied consistently for the Power, Water,

Wastewater and Broadband Systems and were as follows:

Funding Interest Rate

2009 Medical Trend Rates
Ultimate Trend Rate

Year Ultimate Trend Rate Reached
Actuarial Cost Method

Annual Payroli Growth Rate
Remaining Amortization Period at June 30, 2014 (closed)

4.00%
9.00%
5.00%

2017

Entry Age Normal

2.50%
22.9 years

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements
presents multi-year trend information about the change in actuarial value of plan assets relative to the

actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The mortality rates are from the RP-2000 Combined Fully Generational Mortality Table with projection

scale AA. it was assumed that the following percentages of eligible employees would retire each year:

Age Rate
55-59 3%
60-64 20%
65-69 15%
70+ 100%

it was also assumed that employees would terminate employment with the rate in the following table:

Age Male Female
20 6.3% 7.5%
25 5.0% 6.0%
30 3.6% 4.4%
35 2.3% 2.9%
40 1.0% 1.4%
45 0.9% 1.2%
50 0.8% 1.0%
55 0.6% 0.7%
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It was assumed that health care cost would increase in accordance with the trend rates in the following

table:
Vision and

Medical Dental

Year Rates Rates
2013 9.0% 5.0%
2014 8.0% 5.0%
2015 7.0% 5.0%
2016 " B6.0% 5.0%

it was assumed that 100% of the current active employees covered under the active plan on the day
before retirement would enroli in the retiree medical plan upon retirement. It was also assumed that 10%
of the male and 10% of the female employees who elect retiree health coverage for themselves would
also elect coverage for their spouse upon retirement. it was assumed that male spouses are three years
older than their wives and female spouses are three years younger than the retiree. For current retirees,
actual census information was used.

The preparation of the actuarial liabilities calculated requires management to make assumptions
discussed above. Due to the use of these assumptions, actual results may differ from the estimates. The
discount rate considers inflationary rate adjustments,

Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at
the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the employer and plan members
to that point.
Actuarial valuations for the OPEB plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.
Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective.

H. Deferred ltems

Deferred items consisted of the following:

Governmental Business-Type Total
Taxes due after June 30, 2014 $ 11,118,425 $ - $ 11,118,425
Broadband - 182,455 182,455
Total $ 11118425 $ 182,455 $ 11,300,880
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Other Liabilities

included in non-current liabilities is a liability for compensated absences in the storm water system of
$2,397, and in the governmental activities of $797,566. In addition, the broadband system of Morristown
Utilities Commission has a capital lease payable of $18,877 which is included in current liabilities.

Governmental Business

Activities Activities

Balance-July 1, 2013 $ 1,044,458 $ 58,850
Increases 2,015,658 7.687
Decreases (1,861,118} (62,418)
Balance-June 30, 2014 $ 1,198,998 $ 4,119

As an other long-term liability, compensated absences for the governmental activities are expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources of the general, narcotics, and solid waste funds.

Self Insurance

The City is self-insured for employee medical benefits which are administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield
of Tennessee, Inc. The rate of the premiums paid into the fund is based on prior experience and
insurance company recommendations. Claims in excess of a self-insured aggregate limit of $4,052,514
and specific underlying coverage of $85,000 per employee are covered through a stop loss coverage
agreement with BlueRe of Tennessee, an affiliate of the claims administrator. The stop loss arrangement
provides for 100% reimbursement of claims exceeding $4,052,514, subject to contract provisions, up to a
maximum aggregate reimbursement of $1,000,000 per policy year.

Claims Liabiiities

Liabilities of the self-insurance fund are reported when it is probable that a ioss has occurred, and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The self-insurance fund establishes claims liabilities
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been reported but not settled. The process
used to compute claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims incurred prior to
June 30, 2014 and subsequently settled total approximately $175,506, which is recorded as a payable in
the self-insurance fund. Claims incurred but not reported are estimated to be insignificant as of June 30,
2014.

Capital Debt

Power System

The Power System has a promisseory note {2003 Promissory Note} with the City in the principal amount of
$2,500,000. The note was issued to the Commission with proceeds from the City's loan agreement with
the Public Building Authority of Sevier County Bonds. Principal is payable in annual instaltments of

$250,000 through 2018. Interest is payable quarterly at variable rates for 30 day commercial paper with a
AA bond rating as determined by Standard and Poor (0.123% per annum as of June 30,2014).
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The City has an outstanding promissory note (2008 Promissory Note} with the Public Building Authority of
the City of Clarksville, Tennessee, at a variable interest rate as defined in the agreement, payable in
annual installments ranging from $510,000 and $1,360,000 through May 2035. The note provides for a
variable interest rate, which is determined by the Remarketing Agent for the securities. In its sole
discretion, the Remarketing Agent resets the minimum rate of interest that is necessary to remarket all of
the outstanding bonds at par plus accrued interest if settled on a non-interest payment date, based on
market conditions. Many factors are considered when determining the interest rates, and there is no
standard formula used to determine them. The City has allocated the responsibility of the 2008
Promissory Note between the Power System and the Broadband System based upon their proportionate
assets acquired with proceeds from the note.

During 2013, the City entered into a loan agreement (2013 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in a principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000 ($3,514,912
outstanding as of June 30, 2014}. interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.08% as of June 30} as
determined by the Trustee. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts ranging from $364,000 in
2015 to $605,000 in 2028,

Periodically, the Power System acquires additional service areas from local elective cooperatives
servicing Hamblen County residents. As a result of the acquisitions of service areas, the Power System
pays the cooperatives a calculated fee (Cooperative Notes) over a 10-year period based on lost revenues
of the cooperatives.

Water System

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2009 Promissory Note) with the Public Building Authority of
the City of Clarksville in the principai amount of $7,500,000. Proceeds from the loan agreement were
used for various capital projects of the Water System. Interest is payable quarterly at a fixed rate of
3.38%. Principal is payable in varying amounts from $305,000 in December 2014 to $505,000 in
December 2029,

The City has a revolving fund toan agreement (2002 DWSRF Promissory Note) with the State for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $10.5 million for the purpose of expanding an existing water
treatment facility of the Water System. The Water System drew a total of $10,492,582 before closing out
the project during 2007. Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.61% on the
outstanding balance. Principal is also payable monthly in varying amounts from $41,990 in July 2014 to
$55,815 in April 2026. The note is payable from revenues derived from the operations of the Water
System.

The City has a $2,000,000 promissory note (2011 DWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Envircnment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority to fund a
remote-read water meter project. Of the proceeds, $800,000 was provided as a grant via loan forgiveness
through the State. Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.83% on the outstanding
balance. Principal is also payable monthly in varying amounts from $3,992 in July 2014 to $6,399 in June
2032. The note is payable from revenues derived from operations of the Water System.

Wastewater System

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50518 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the principal amount of $8,000,000 of which 50% is attributed to the
Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the construction and equipping of
extensions and improvements to the Wastewater System and refunding of prior debt. Interest is payable
monthly at variable rates (0.07% as of June 30, 2014} as determined by the Remarketing Agent.
Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $162,000 in May 2015 to $305,500 in May 2028.
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The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50545 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the principal amount of $3,000,000 of which 57% is attributed to the
Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the installation of energy
conservation measures and related upgrades to reduce energy costs in public facilities. Interest is
payable monthly at variable rates (0.07% as of June 30, 2014) as determined by the Remarketing Agent.
Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $66,120 in May 2015 to $130,530 in May 2029,

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50532 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the County of Montgomery, Tennessee in the principal amount of $20,000,000 of which
53.98% is attributed to the Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the
purpose of prepaying outstanding indebtedness. Interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.07% as
of June 30, 2014} as determined by the Remarketing Agent. Principal is payable annually in varying
amounts from $437,743 in May 2015 to $825,354 in May 2028.

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50536 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the principal amount of $5,035,000 of which 35% is atfributed to the
Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the purpose of prepaying
outstanding indebtedness. Interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.07% as of June 30, 2014} as
determined by the Remarketing Agent. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $71,750 in
May 2015 to $136,500 in May 2028.

The City has an outstanding ioan agreement {2009 — Promissory Note) between the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville and First Tennessee Bank in the principai amount of $5,000,000 of
which 38.156% is aftributed to the Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for
the purpose of prepaying outstanding indebtedness and construction, extension, renovation and
improvement of the Wastewater System, including the acquisition of certain equipment. Interest is
payable quarterly at a fixed rate of 2.91%. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $59,514
in December 2014 to $105,676 in December 2034,

The City has a revolving fund loan agreement (2007 — CWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Ccnservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $12,500,000 for the purpose of rehabilitation and site work at the
wastewater treatment plant. The City drew a total of $10,016,558 befere closing out the project during
2012. Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.06% on the outstanding balance.
Principal is aiso payable monthly in varying amounts from $35,537 in July 2014 to $50,476 in
January 2032. The note is payable from revenues derived from the operations of the System.

The City has a revolving fund loan agreement (2009 - CWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $1,600,000 for the purpose of rehabilitation and site work at the
wastewater treatment plant. The City drew a total of $1,287,983 before closing out the project during
2014. Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.73% on the outstanding balance.
Principal is also payable monthly in varying amounts from $4,302 in July 2014 to $7,102 in October 2032.
The note is payable from revenues derived from the operations of the System.

The City has a revolving fund loan agreement (2013 ~ CWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $5,000,000 for the purpose of rehabilitation and site work at the
wastewater treatment plant. The note had been issued but not drawn upaon as of June 30, 2014.
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During 2012, the City issued $31,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, of which
$26,000,000 relates to the Wastewater System. The bonds were issued for the purpose of financing the
cost of constructing, improving and extending the Wastewater System. The bonds consist of serial
maturities of increasing amounts ranging from $1,086,117 in October 2014 to $1,077,730 in October
2036. Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 2% to 4%. The bonds are subject to
redemption at the direction of the City prior to maturity. The bonds maturing on October 1, 2022 and
thereafter are subject to redemption as a whole or in part at any time at the direction of the City. The
bonds are payahle from and secured by income and revenues from the operation of the Wastewater
System.

During 2014, the City entered into a loan agreement (2013 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the principal amount not to exceed $20,000,000 ($5,142,587
outstanding as of June 30). Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the extension,
construction, improvement and equipping of the Wastewater System. interest is payable semi-annually at
a fixed rate of 3.65%. Principal of $1,000,000 is payable annually, maturing September 2033.

Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium.

The Wastewater System has agreed to establish and revise rates such that revenues will be sufficient to
pay all costs of maintaining, operating, repairing and ensuring the Wastewater System and the amounts
necessary for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds.

During 2009, the City entered into an asset purchase agreement for the acquisition of a wastewater
treatment plant located in Hamblen County, Tennessee. The agreement provided for an initial down
payment of $750,000 plus ongoing Flow Fees generally ranging between $182,500 (minimum Flow Fee if
annual volume fails to exceed the average of 500,000 gallons per day) and $736,125 annually through
2034 depending on the volume of discharges. The City recorded the acquisition {and related contractual
obligation} at the estimated fair value of the wastewater treatment plant. The obligation ($2,487,216
outstanding as of June 30, 2014) is payable monthly at $15,208, which includes interest at the imputed
rate of $4.1%. Flow fees in excess of $15,208, if any, will be charged to expense as incurred.

Broadband System

The Broadhand System was allocated a portion of the 2008 Promissory Note (Power System) based on
the assets acquired from the proceeds of the note. In addition, the Broadband System has an interfund
note payable to the Power System. In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated 7-52-603(b), a line of
credit was executed allowing the Broadhand System to borrow up to $7,000,000 from the Power System
at an interest rate equal to the highest rate earned on Power System investments (0.25% at June 30,
2014), Interest incurred on the loan amounted to $16,141 in 2014. The agreement was approved by
TVA as required by the power contract and provides for the repayment of all advances along with
accumulated interest by January 2025,

During 2014, the City entered into a loan agreement (2014 Promissory Note} with First Tennessee Bank
in the principal amount of $1,000,000. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the purpose of
purchase, installation integration and bringing into operational status a phone switch. Interest is payable
semi-annually at a fixed rate of 2.59%. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $100,000 in
June 2016 to $123,000 in June 2024,
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Future Debt Maturities

Governmental Business-type
Year Ending Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 1,173,561 $ 854,941 $ 6,262,456 $ 1,709,612
2016 1,211,529 808,938 6,421,328 1,759,311
2017 1,225,612 761,078 6,551,049 1,639,836
2018 1,270,664 711,266 6,667,862 1,518,771
2019 1,314,316 659,263 6,527,301 1,412,788
2020-2024 7,301,596 2,437,790 28,943,731 5,639,985
2025-2029 5,808,509 855,926 24,141,743 3,188,608
2030-2034 765,409 81,216 15,335,099 1,296,427
2035-2039 166,778 2,427 5,266,441 198,954
Totals $20,237,974 $7,172,845 $106,117,010

Following are debt requirements for capital leases:

Business-type

2015 $ 18,877
2016 18,877
2017 18,877
2018 18,877
2019 12,584
Total future minimum lease payments 88,092
Less amounts representing interest (11,609}

Present value of future minimum lease payments
(including $18,877 classified as current) $ 76,483

$18,264,292
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

K. Prior Period Adjustment

Prior period adjustments were necessary to correct accounts payable presented on the solid waste fund
and receivable from the agency fund (LAMTPQ). Details of the effects on beginning net position are as
follows: ' .

Government-wide Fund Statements
Governmental Business-type General Solid
Activities Activities Fund Waste

Net Position - June 30, 2013 $54,686,910 $106,005,041 $ 24425304 $ 398,617
Prior period adjustment;
Correction - due to manual A/P items

Solid Waste Fund 1,113 1,113
Receivable correction - LAMTPO (117,501} (117,501)
Total prior period adjustment (115,388) - (117.,501) 1,113

Net Position - June 30, 2013, as adjusted $ 54,570,522 $106,005,041 $ 24,307,803 $ 399,730

State Street Aid Activities

The following is a summary of State Street Aid activity within the General Fund for the year ended June
30, 2014:

Reserve fund balance, July 1, 2013 $1,448 582
Add — state gasoline tax revenues 947 535
Less — state expenditures: paving 875,221
Reserve fund baiance, June 30, 2014 $1,5620,896

M. Other Disclosures

1. Commitments and Contingencies
At June 30, 2014, the City had the following commitments:

The City has a month-to-maonth contract with Morristown Air Service for fixed base operation of the
airport.

Contingent Liabilities

in November 2013, the City entered into an agreement with Charter Central, LLC, for the {ease of an
airport hangar and office space for a term of 25 years. Charter Central, LLC, paid $975,000 at the
beginning of the lease term. Due to the lease cancellation clause, a contingent liability of $800,000 is
being amortized over the life of the lease with interest and lease revenue recognized annually.

The government is the defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not

presently determinable, in the opinion of the government’s counsel the resolution of these matters will
not have a material effect on the financial condition of the government.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

2. Concentration of Credit Risk

The City and Morristown Utilities Commission provide electric power, water, wastewater and
broadband service to customers in the City of Morristown and Hamblen County. Customers include
residential, commercial, and heavy industrial users. Residential customers for the Power and
Broadband Systems are required to place deposits that approximate one month’s account balance.
Loss experience has not been significant to the operations for these services.

N. Enterprise Funds
The following Enterprise Funds have been created to provide various services to the general public:

Power Fund — established to account for the operation of MUC Power System.

Water Fund — established to account for the operation of MUC Water System.

Wastewater Fund — estabiished to account for the operation of MUC Wastewater System - Note 5.
Broadband Fund - established to account for the operation of MUC Broadband System.

Storm Water Fund - established to account for Storm Water mitigation activities of the City of Morristown.

Power Contract

The Power System has a power contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority {(TVA) whereby the Power
System purchases all of its electric power from TVA and is subject to certain restrictions and conditions as
provided in the contract.

MUC was previously selected by TVA for a pilot program to implement and test a demand response
infrastructure. As part of this program, MUC agreed to provide system load reduction at TVA's request
over a ten year period. During 2014, MUC implemented load reduction and received $331,552 from TVA.

Tennessee Valley Authority Home Insulation Program
The Power System participates in the TVA energy right® Residential Program which provides interest-
bearing loans to the Power System’s customers for energy-efficient equipment and other weatherization

measures. Under the program, the Power System collects payments on new and previously existing
foans and forwards payments to a financial institution pursuant to guidelines established by TVA.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

0. Net Position

Net position for the Power, Water, Wastewater and Broadband Systems consist of the following as of
June 30, 2014:

Power Water Wastewater Broadband
System System System System
Net investment in capital assets consists of the following:
Net capital assets % 60,235,250 § 38,407,767 $ 64,890,193 $ 7,075,806
Restricted unspent bond funds - 2,910,724 13,285,902 675,961
Less related liabiities:
Current portion of long-term debt and contractual cbligation - - 3,496,607
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligation - - - 143,824
Current portion of long-term debt 1,079,036 B56,784 -
Long-term debt and centractual obligation, less current portion - - 56,670,152
Long-term debt and capital i2ase obligation, less current portion - - - 5,416,035
Long-term debt, less current portion 17,646,589 13,552,687 - -
Total related liabilities 18,725,625 14,409,471 60,166,759 5,659,859
Net investment in capital assets $ 41,509,625 $ 26,909,020 $ 18,009,336 $ 2.191,908

Unrestricted net position consists of all other items in the balance sheets not reflected above.
P. Joint Ventures

Morristown-Hamblen County Library ~ The City of Morristown and Hamblen County jointly own the
Morristown-Hamblen Library. Each appoints an equal number of members to its board of directors. The
City contributed $261,490 for the library operation during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

Hambien County-Morristown Solid Waste Authority — The City of Morristown and Hambien County jointly
own the Hamblen County-Morristown Landfill. Each appoints an equal number of members to the board
of directors. This operation is seif-sufficient in that users are charged for services rendered. During the
year ended June 30, 2014, the City was charged $218,200.

City of Marristown does not have an equity interest in any of the above-noted joint ventures, Complete
financial statements for the Morristown-Hamblen Library and Hamblen County-Morristown Solid Waste
Disposal System can be obtained from their respective administrative offices at the following addresses:

Morristown-Hamblen Library
417 West Main Street
Morristown, TN 37814

Hamblen County-Morristown Solid
Waste Disposai System

P.O. Box 2108

Morristown, TN 37816
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

Q. Pension Plan Information
CITY OF MORRISTOWN
Plan Description

Employees of Morristown are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
muitiple-employer defined benefit pension pfan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement
System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are
determined by a formula using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service.
Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with ten years of service or at any age with 30 years of
service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits
are available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in
gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury
occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining the system after Juiy 1,
1979, become vested after ten years of service and members joining prior to July 1, 1979, were vested
after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-
37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Poiitical subdivisions such as Morristown participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are
liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit improvements
are not applicable to a political subdivision uniess approved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury
Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-
0230 or can be accessed at hitp.//www.tn.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS/.

Funding Policy
Morristown requires employees to contribute 5.0 percent of earnable compensation.

Morristown is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2014, was 14.68% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is
set by state statute. The contribution requirement for MORRISTOWN is established and may be
amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2014, Morristown’s annual pension cost of $1,927,666 to TCRS was equal
to Morristown’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of
7.5 percent a year compounded annually, (b} projected 3.0 percent annual rate of inflation, (c) projected
salary increases of 4.75 percent (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the
portion attributable to the effects of infiation on salaries), (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the
Social Security wage base, and (e) projected post retirement increases of 2.5 percent annually. The
actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in
-the market value of total investments over a ten-year period. Morristown’s unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period
at July 1, 2011 was 14 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2011, which established
contribution rates effective July 1, 2012.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2013 $1,912,033 100.00% 3 -
June 30, 2012 $ 1,848,357 100.00% $ -
June 30, 2011 $ 1,874,073 100.00% $ -

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 80.00 percent funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $67.06 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $53.65
million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liabifity {UAAL) of $13.41 million. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $12.65 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 105.99 percent.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSH) following the
notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values
of the plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time refative to the AALs for benefits.

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Vaiue of {AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Plan Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b} - (a) (afb) {c) ((b - a)/c}
07/01/11 $ 50,041 $ 63,093 $ 13,052 79.31% $ 12,554 103.97%
07/01/09 42923 51,271 8,348 83.72% 13,532 61.69%
07/01/07 41,850 50,438 8,588 82.97% 13,034 65.89%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Morristown Utilities Commission’s Retirement Plan

The Systems share in a defined contribution retirement plan, Marristown Utilittes Commission Employee
Retirement Plan (the Plan), covering substantially all employees. The Commission is the administrator of
the Plan and is responsible for establishing or amending the Plan provisions and contribution
requirements.

Power System:

% of Y% of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroil Payroli Contributions Payroll Contributions Payrofl
2014 $5,106,363 $ 4,695,584 $ 701,989 15% $ 344,593 7%
2013 $4,522,471 $4,249,744 $ 636,363 15% $ 328,198 8%
2012 $ 4,367,221 $4,207.127 $ 631,069 15% $ 309,463 7%
2011 $4,230,281 $4,024.616 $ 603622 15% $ 290,525 7%
Water System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payrol! Payroti Contributions PayroH Contributions Payroll
2014 $ 1,458,497 $ 1,385,506 $ 204,042 15% $ 72,29 5%
2013 $1,405,880 $1,343,576 $ 197,953 15% $ 81,841 6%
2012 $1,266,713 $ 1,248,179 $ 183,889 15% $ 80,157 6%
2011 $1,216,305 $ 1,180,455 $ 173,906 15% $ 78,757 7%
Broadhand System;
% of % of
Total Covered Empioyer Covered Empioyee Covered
Payroll Payroll Contributions Payrol! Contributions Payroll
2014 $1,339,471 $1,164,406 $ 171,279 15% $§ 53,534 5%
2013 $1,402,398 $1,219,296 $ 180,526 15% $ 58,285 5%
2012 $1,194,775 $ 915333 $ 136,152 15% $ 48,741 5%
2011 $ 954,974 $ 749,847 $ 112,477 15% $ 44,351 6%
Wastewater System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Empioyeeg Covered
Payroll Payroli Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroil
2014 $ 438,885 $ 361,247 $ 53,971 15% $ 25764 7%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

Under the Plan terms, the Systems will match participant contributions up to 3% of the participant’s salary
and may also contribute an additional amount to the Plan at its discretion. During 2014, the
discretionary contribution amounted to 12% of the participants’ salary. Participants are not required but
may contribute up to a total of 75% of their salary subject to IRS limitations. All employees who have
completed one year of service as defined by the Plan and who have attained the age of 21 are eligible to
participate in the Plan, Participants are 100% vested in the employer contributions when they are made.

R. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries of employees for which the City carries commercial
insurance purchased from independent third parties. The City has not experienced an insurance
settlement in excess of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The City bears the risk of
loss up to the deductible amounts which are disclosed in the accompanying Statistical Section.

NOTE 5 — TRANSFER OF OPERATIONS

Under a memo of understanding, the City transferred operations of the Wastewater (sewer) System to the
Commission effective December 30, 2013. Condensed financial information of the Wastewater System was as
follows as of the transfer date:

Assets:
Current assets $ 7,793,367
Restricted current assets 13,189,482
Capital assets 59,335,721
Total assets 80,318,570
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 4,847 599
Long-term liabilities 53,768,209
Total liabilities 58,615,808
Net position $ 21,702,762
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Schedule of Funded Status and Funding Progress for Morristown, Tennessee

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Required Supplementary Information

(Excluding Morristown Utility Commission)

June 30, 2014

Pension
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of (AAL} AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Plan Assets - Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) {b} - (a) (alb) {c) {{b - a)ic}
07/01/11 $ 50,041 $ 63,003 $ 13,052 79.31% $ 12,554 103.97%
07/01/09 42,923 51,271 8,348 83.72% 13,532 61.69%
07/01/07 41,850 50,438 8,588 82.97% 13,034 65.89%
OFEB
UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets {AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroli (AAL)
Date {a) (b} (b -a) {a/b) {c) ((b - a)/c)
1/1/2007 $ - $ 5,333,339 $ 5,333,339 0.0% N/A N/A
07/01/10 212,913 5,093,035 4,880,122 4.2% N/A N/A
G7/01/12 180,115 4,215,993 4,035,878 4.3% 11,398,213 35.4%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual

Fiscal Year Required Percentage
Ended Contribution Contributed
6/30/2009 $ 518,360 100%
6/30/2010 473,774 100%
6/30/2011 455,797 100%
6/30/2012 468,493 100%
6/30/2013 376,550 100%
6/30/2014 375,632 100%
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncoliectibles)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Payroll liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue

FUND BALANCE
Committed

Restricted fund balance
Total fund balance

Total liabitities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balance

The notes to financial statements are an integrat pari of this statement.

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

Total NonMajor

Community Governmental
Narcotics Development Funds
105,618 105,465 % 214,083
3,815 - 3,815
109,433 105,465 $ 214,899
1,982 206 $ 2,188
1,982 206 2,188
52,986 ~ 52,986
44 “ 44
54,421 105,259 159,680
54,465 105,258 159,724
109,433 105,465 $ 214,899
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City of Morristown, Tennessee )
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

Total NonMajor

Community Governmental
Narcotics Development Funds
Revenues:
Licenses, permits and fines $ 89,825 $ - $ 89,825
intergovernmental . 211 213,580 213,790
Total revenues 90,036 213,580 303,615
Expenditures:
Current:
Administration - 103,176 103,176
Programs - 160,990 160,990
Contracts with other agencies - . -
Total general government - 264 165 264,165
Public safety:
Police 574,560 - 574,560
Total public safety 574,560 - 574,560
Total expenditures 574,560 264,165 838,725
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures (484,524) (50,586) (535,110)

Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in 535,663 - 535663
Transfers out - - -

Total other financing sources and uses 535,663 - 535,663
Net change in fund balance 51,139 (50,586) 553

Fund balance - beginning 3,326 155,845 159,171
Fund balance - ending $ 54,465 $ 105,259 $ 159,724

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statemant.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Community Development Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenue:
ESG grant
CDBG reimbursemenis
Non rev.-fund balance appropriations -

Total revenues

Expenditures:

CDBG administration:
Wages and salaries permanent employees
Christmas bonus and longevity
FICA
Medicare
TCRS contribution
Employee health insurance
Employee life insurance
Workers compensation
Postal service
Printing services
Legat notices
Other professional services
Memberships and dues
Education seminars and training
Trave} business expenses
Office supplies and materials
Other miscellaneous expenses

Total CDBG administration

CDBG programs and activities:
Grants and subsidies

Total CDBG programs and activities
Total expenditures

Net change in fund batance

Fund balance, July 1, 2013

Fund balance, June 30, 2014

Original ‘ Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

5 72112 5 72,112 - $ 72,112
350,667 350,667 213,580 137,087

- 500 - 500
422779 423,279 213,580 206,699
53,629 54,129 54,040 89

283 283 282 1

3,343 3,343 3,257 86

782 782 762 20
7.914 7,914 7,979 (65)
11,750 11,750 11,703 47

210 210 - 210

1,575 1,575 1,401 174

500 500 118 382

220 220 - 220

1,650 1,650 917 733
5,500 5,500 9,970 (4,470)
1,500 1,500 335 1,165

6,600 6,600 5,484 1,116
9,800 9,800 6,520 3,280
2,000 2,000 409 1,591
5,000 5,000 - 5,000
112,256 112,756 103,176 9,580
310,523 310,523 160,990 149,533
310,523 310,523 160,990 149,533
422,779 423,279 264,165 159,114

. - (50,586) 50,586

155,845 155,845 155,845 -
3 155,845  § 155,845 105,259 5 50,586
92

The notes to financial statements are an integral par of this statement.




Clty of Morristown, Tennessee

Narcotics Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Orlginal Fina!
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenue:
QOCEDTF reimbursements 3 - 3,100 3123 5 {23)
State reimbursements and refunds - 210 211 (4]
Non rev -fund balance appropriations - 3,290 - 3,290
Donations-palice - 5,000 5,000 -
Program income 125,099 125,099 81,701 43,398
Total revenues 125,089 136,699 90,036 46,663
Vice:
Wages and salaries permanent employees 58,512 58,519 56,755 1,764
Overtime 3,500 3,500 2924 576
Christmas bonus and longevity 855 655 555 0
FICA 3,886 3,886 3,638 248
Medicare 09 909 851 £8
TCRS contribution 9.201 9,201 8,957 244
Employee health insurance 22,507 22,507 11,619 10,888
Employee life insurance 1,526 1,525 - 1,525
Workers compensation 1,182 1,182 1,401 {219}
Clothing/uniform/shoes 650 650 650 -
Telephone services 720 720 835 {115}
Medical services - 100 56 44
Other professional services 800 800 - 800
Repair and maintenance vehicles 200 200 - 200
Education seminars and training 400 400 375 25
Travet business expenses 500 500 405 95
Office supplies and materials 400 400 283 117
Gasoline and diesel fuel 2,660 2,660 2,074 586
Vehicie paris/oil/fluidftires 500 500 - 500
Insurance 1,768 1,788 1,678 110
Property (contents) insurance 375 375 385 (10)
Totatl vice 110,877 110,977 93,541 17,436
Narcotics:
Wages and salaries permanent employees 238,474 238474 235,197 3,277
Gverlime 10,000 13,500 13,218 282
Holiday pay 3,132 3,132 - 3,132
Christmas bonus and lengevity - 2,700 2,682 18
FICA 15,600 15,600 15,200 400
Medicare 3,648 3,648 3,655 93
TCRS contribution 36,936 36,936 37,264 (328)
Employee health insurance 58,642 58,642 56,996 1,646
Employee life insurance 904 904 - 904
Workers compensation 33,341 33,341 7,004 26,337
Clothing/uniform/shoes 2,800 2,800 2,600 200
Postal service 200 200 211 (1)
Legal notices 700 70D 127 573
Telephone services 3,550 3,550 2,644 906
Medical services - 200 112 B8
Other professicnal services 10 10 - 10
Repair and maintenance vehicles 250 250 - 250
Memberships and dues 265 265 114 151
Education seminars and training 1,700 1,700 700 1,600
Travel business expenses 3,200 3,200 2,771 429
Other contracted services 8,400 8,400 5.212 3,188
Office supplies and materials 1,800 1,800 1,613 187
Smakl tools & equipment 18,900 23,900 14,032 9,868
General operating supplies 3,000 3,102 422 2,680
Gasoline and diesel fuel 15,000 16,241 15,631 830
Vehicle parls/oilfiuidfires 3,618 3,618 2,958 660
Insurance 8,941 8,941 8,392 549
Properly (contents) insurance 1,874 1,874 1,926 {52)
Equipment rentalllease - 100 58 42
Undercover expenses 75,000 75,000 50,399 24,601
Total Narcatics 549,885 562,727 481,018 81,709
Totat expenditures 660,762 673,704 574,560 99,145
Net change in fund balance (535,663) (537,005) {484,524) (52,481)
Otlher sources of funds:

Operating transfers in 535,663 535,663 535,663 -
Net change in fund balance - (1,342) 51,139 (52,481)
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 3,326 3,326 3,326 -
Fund batance, June 30, 2014 3 3,326 1,984 54,465 § {52,481)

The nales to financial statements are an integral parl of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2014

(A} B8 (C) (D)
Balance Balance
CFDA Cantract July 1, 2013 Federal June 30, 2014
Number Grantor Agency/Program Number Receivable Receipts Expenditures Receivable
10.559 USDA/
Summer Feeding Program 30-007 i - $ 112614 § 112,614 3 -
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
14,218 Development/CDBG B-12-MC-47-0013 {42,308} 197,875 155,570 -
14.231 THDA ESG-12-17 (14,102} 30,896 16,794 -
ESG-12-30 - 41,216 41,216 -
(56,407} 269,987 213,580 -
U.S. Department of Justice/
16.607 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program - 5,918 5,918 -
16.71 COPS 2010-UM-WX-0293 (51,289) 217,863 190,079 {23,504)
16.738  Edward Byrne Memorial JAG Program 2011-DJ-BX-3459 - 19,482 19,482 -
16,738  Edward Byrme Memorial JAG Program 2013-DJ-BX-1129 - - 15,190 {15,190)
Traffic Safety & Impaired Driving
20.607 Prevention 154Al -14-87 - 20,060 25,147 (5,087)
(51,289) 263,322 255,815 (43,782)
. 8. Department of Transpertation/
20.106 Airport Fueling System TAD 32-555-0444-04 (15,185) 86,255 92,763 (21,723)
20,205 Highway Planning Grants STP-M-66(46) - 6,724 13,244 (6,520)
STP-M-9113(12) (16,301} 117,726 104,425 B
STP-M-9113(8) - 13,207 13,207 -
STP-M-34(79) {8,471} 18,070 9,599 -
STP-M-8113(11) (119,117} 238,254 119,137 -
STP-M-9113(13) (14,226} 34,341 20,115 B
STP-M-34(78) - 38,476 38,476 -
STP-M-9113(18) (188,914) 255,060 66,148 -
STP-M-9%13(20) - - 19,478 (19,478)
HPP-9113(9) - 432 65,333 {64,901}
SRTS-9113(19) - 1,554 1,554 -
Downtown Pedestrian Imp/Corridor Proj 70178 - 117,236 295,385 {178,150}
Transportation Planning & Coordination SPR-PL-1{318) (23,445) 77,068 53,919 (298}
TN-96-X014-00 - 23,603 23,603 -
TN-90-x347-00 (114,431) 191,119 206,385 {129,697}
TN-80-005 - - 9,993 {9,993)
IM-81-1{102)7 - 14,429 14,429 -
STP-HPP-66(44) - 15,114 15,114 -
(484,904) 1,162,412 1,086,542 (E) (409,034)
3 (B807,735) $1,594,591 $ 1,761,344 §  (474,539)
A) Receivable at June 30, 2013
B) Cash receipts
C) Federal expenditures
) Receivable at June 30, 2014
E) Major federal program

Basis of Presentation
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "schedule™} includes the federal grant activity of the City of Morristown, Tennessee, under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2014. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents oniy
a selected portion of the operations of the City of Morristown, Tennessee, it is not intended o and does not present the financial position, changes in net
position or cash flows of the City of Morristown, Tennessee.

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Schedule of State Financial Assistance

Year Ended June 30, 2014

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Balance Balance

Contract July 1, 2013 June 30, 2014

Grantor Agency/Program Number Receivable Receipts Expenditures Receivable
Airport Rehabilitation 32-555-0743-04 3 - $361,072 $ 365859 $ (4,787}
Airport Apron Improvements 32-555-0742 (42,388) 52,936 10,548 -
Airport Maintenance Grant AERO-M13-201-00 {2,346) 2,346 - -
Airport Maintenance Grant AERM-14-377-00 - 18,575 19,800 (1,225)
2013 Airport Layout Plan 32-556-0747-04 - 26,243 56,194 {30,950)
Airport Security Upgrades 32-555-0748.04 - 9,105 9,105 -
2014 Runway Obstruction 32-555-0749-04 - 5,463 5,463 -
TN Historical Commission GG-7-08-13 - 2,562 2,562 -
Internet Crimes Against Children C-13-0168 (9,865) 9,865 - -
Fast Track Grants GG-12-376905-00 (136,597) 136,597 - -
Section 5307 Operating Assistance 32URQP-S3-008 (57,216) 172,627 115,411 -
$ (248,411) $796,390 $ 584,941 3 (36,962)

A) Receivable at June 30, 2013

B} Cash receipts

C) State expenditures
D) Receivable at June 30, 2014

95




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statistical Information
June 30, 2014

This part of the City of Morristown’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information.to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's current
levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the government's financial activities take place.
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in

the government’s financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it
perfarms,
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis)

June 30, 2014

6/30/2008 5/30/2008 6/30/2007 6130/2008 6/30/2009 6{30/2010 6i30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/12013 6130/2014
Expanses:
Governmental Activities:
Ganaral government $ 3532804 § 3732690 5 4427912 5 4720356 ¢ 3593414 § 3536036 § 3518056 § 4267622 § 3593414 § 2937464
Public safely 11,553,257 12,011,746 14,783,116 14,938,133 14,016,226 13,510.787 13,528,045 13,775,987 14,016,226 14,634,316
Public works 5,024,791 7,884,650 8,936,753 12,760,354 6,665,204 7,208,206 8,372 617 9,939,808 6,665,204 6,831,898
Parks and recrealion 1,469,315 1,864,017 3,107 468 2,404,471 1773,943 1,767,692 4,805,109 1,793,705 1,773,943 2,056,499
Civic support 544,398 532,178 856,949 558,723 1,098,472 583,177 663,498 1,638,926 1,098,472 1,011,941
Economic devalopmeant 1,448,415 3,879,932 126,444 1,117,548 147 547 624,033 1,904,129 382,784 147,547 266,060
Retiree benefits 434,580 292,973 - - - 394,856 439,304 309,630 401,695 306,363
Alrport 704,585 554,398 631,368 573,847 - - - - - -
Transporiation - - - - - 767,273 - - - -
Leng-term debt expense 217,831 339,239 582,295 785,032 327,064 342,543 283,153 269,717 327,084 266,676
Cther - - - - - - - - - -
Tolal governmental activites expense 24,929 976 31,091,823 33,452,305 37,867,765 27,621,870 28,704 613 30513911 32,408,080 28,023 565 28,261,217
Business-type activilies:
Water 3,765,578 4,241,596 4,486,115 5,056,020 5,669,323 5,305,637 5,840,954 5,854,982 5,689,323 6,287,865
Waslewater 4,696,065 5,170,188 5,662,688 5,760,586 9,421,138 7.844,245 9,210,878 9,632,557 9,489,262 9,067,056
Powar 47,493,148 53,341,801 56,800,708 61,105,276 73,724,666 83,957 470 73,019,022 71,977,895 73,724 566 75,270,529
Broadband system 4,176 714877 4,449,839 6,907,546 7,256 552 7,030,319 6,321,905 8,963,308 7,256,552 6,945,100
Storm water - - - 436,016 810,198 576,843 592,574 668,713 810,198 832,132
Total businass-lype expenses 556,958 867 63,468,262 71,419,350 80,265,455 96,801,777 84,714,514 54,985,333 95,087 455 06,869,901 98,402,682
Total primary government expenses 80,088,943 94,560,085 104 871,655 118,133,220 124,523,647 113,419,127 125,498,244 127,495,535 124,993 466 126,663,898
Program revenues:
Governmental aclivities:
Charges for services.
Genaral govemment 231,440 223,537 557,087 409,037 232,242 280,238 134,066 130,440 232242 134,359
Public safety 936,037 904,316 414,881 778,216 1,140,852 1,343,081 1,510,750 1,318,940 1,178,045 1,067,791
Public works - 258,709 - - - - 1,091,664 1,300,875 1,343,758 1,370,370
Parks and recraation 131,998 165,179 137,584 - - - - - - -
Civic supporl - - - - - - - - - -
Economic cevelopment - - - - - - - - - -
Retiree benefits - - - - - - - - - -
Airport - - - - - - - - - -
Long-term expense - - - - - - - - - -
Operating grants and contributions - 505,818 448,864 888,336 746,980 975,028 1,091,676 700,118 710,156 1.454 635
Capital grants and contributions - 3,234,328 1,702 895 1,546,886 710,156 660,995 - - - -
Total governmental activities program ravenues 1,299,475 5,281,887 3,261,311 3,622,475 2,830,230 3,261,142 3,828,356 3.451.373 3.464,202 4,017,055
Business-type activities.
Charga for services:
Water 4,943, 461 5,339,101 5,335,578 5,672,994 6,450217 5,769,458 6,936,381 6,602 966 4,450,217 6,449 609
Wastewater 4,589,153 4,749,533 5,556,473 8,766,896 5,601,692 6,601,692 9,308,092 10,049,655 14,227 579 12,655,593
Power 49,466,518 55,821,500 58,631,933 33,351,409 74,850,804 67 681,072 77,167,026 74,575,366 74,850,804 1,330,447
Broadband systam - 102,690 2,548,590 4,503,672 7,185,234 6,502,002 8,321,898 6,815,505 7,195,234 75,425,515
Slorm water - 83,383 1,342 850 563,662 541,052 1375723 1,342,550 7,629,190
Operating grants and conltributions - - - - - 2,067,523 2,219,003 2,580,025
Capilal grants and contributions - - - 55,500 84631 84,631 847,793 165,384 1,602,948 524 286
Total business-type activilies program revenue 58,999,132 66,012,624 72,072,574 02,339,854 96,525,128 88,202,417 101,122,243 101,652,122 104,888,335 106,595,565
Total primary gavernment pragram revenue $ 60208607 & 71294711 _§ 75333885 §B5062329 § 99355358 % 91463553 3104960599 _$105,103,495 S$108362,637 $110612,620 |
Net (expanse)} revenue:; .
Govermmental aclivities ${23,630,501) 3(25,809,936} $(30,190,994) $(34,245290) 5(24,791,640) $(25443,471) §(26685555) §{28956,707) $(24559,363) §{24,244,162) :
Business-ype activities: 3,040,165 2,544,582 653,224 2,074,399 (376,649) 3,487,903 6,136,910 6,564,667 7,918,434 4,192,883
Total primary government program expanse ${20,590,306) _§(23,265374) _${?0537770) _§£(32,170891) S5(2?5168.280) §(21955,568) % (20548,645) $4{22392.040) 3$(16564G,929) §{16,051,279}
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General governmentat and other changes

in net position:
Governmental Activities:
Properly iaxes
inlieu taxes
Franchise taxes
Local sales tax
Alcohal beverage tax

Business and gross receipls tax

Hetel/motel tax
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Investment eamings
Use of money and properly
Transfers

Total business-lype aclivilies

Total primary government

Changes in net position:
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government

Generat Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Total generat fund
All other govermmental funds
Unreserved
Reserved

Tetal all other governmental funds

Gity of Morristown, Tennessee

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis)
June 30, 2014

6/30/2005 6/30/2006 6/30/2007 6/30/2008 6/30/2008 §/30/2010 6130/2011 /3012012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014
$ 6,544,260 § 6959667 § 6,744,780 3 9521787 § 8766697 § 9180026 $ 98685180 § 9135643 § 9083552 $ 9,313,995

72,748 92,446 85,529 35,536 - - - - - -
853,208 1,006,887 732,339 926,802 784 365 644,358 400,815 508,668 632,723 692,442
9,196,618 9,491 687 9,504,019 9,446,110 10,389,929 9,454,955 9611440 10,236,619 9923645 10,061,738
1,032,668 1,076,180 1,107,005 1,138 908 1,178,386 1,190,044 1,140,739 1,364,148 1,397,959 1,404,875
784,119 881,441 543,210 466,833 947 659 663,824 882,131 1,000,937 936,935 837,434
350,931 384,387 417,120 425 0BT 367,704 361,096 454,855 533,149 561,930 542,235
96,134 607,576 451,307 470,219 246,632 1,014,717 870,195 979,709 253,683 750,587
4,097,107 3,405,260 3989312 3,834,117 2,148,264 4,188,982 5,112,921 4777887 5,146,051 4,476,998
824,276 653,299 687,841 731,014 1,530,560 734,958 513,163 1,532,378 1,667,528 1,452 361
23,852,078 24558730 24732471 27206413 26360196 27432960 _ 29,171,448 30,159,138 26604,006 29,532 665
- - - 387,620 61,484 95,302 86,495 304,325 84,739 225,086
(824,276) (653,299) (687,841) {731,014} (1,530,560} (734,958) (813,163)  (1,532,37@) (1667520}  (1,452.361)
(B24,276) (653,299) (687,841} (343,194} (1,369,076) {639,656) (726,668) _ (1,22B,053) _ ({1,585,789) _ (1,297,275)
$23,027802 $23805431 $04,044630 $26953,219 $24001,120 $26,793,304 $28,444760 _§28.931,085 $28018217 $28,305390
§ 221,577 §(1,219,206) $(5458,513) $(694B877) § 2,693,183 § 1,980,489 § 2485893 § 1202432 § 5044643 § 5,288,502
2,125,889 1,891,263 (34.597) 1,731,206 2,236,653 2,848,247 5,410,242 5,336 614 6,332 645 6,965,607
§ 2347466 $ 672057 $(5493.110) §(5217,671) _§ 4929836 § 4B37,736 § 7896,135 _§ 6,539.046 _§11,377,208 _$12,254,108
$ 1,923,010 § B551476 § 4660443 § - % 2619067 % 353457 $ 630,964 $13028600 §13,228903  $13,556,928
5,254,556 4,060,987 - 2,706,279 - 3,326,040 6,804,115 10,075,983 11,196,401 12,155,081
§ 7177566 $12612463 5 4660443 § 2705279 § 2619067 _$ 3619497 § 7444079 $23,104,583 ~§ 24,425304 ~§25,712,009
§ - 8 - % - 5 - 8 - % (26323 § 3B7.277 0§ 541,585 § 396817 § .
53,301 9,883 163,657 41,475 3,199 25473 73,843 106,353 159,171 363,030
$ 53,301 § 9BE3 5 164657 § 41475 § 3189 § (850) & 461,120 & 647,038 § 557,788 & 363,030
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Table of General Bonded Debt with Total Assessment and

Ten Tax Years Ended 2014

Expenditure Ratio

Ration of Bonded

Ratio of Bonded

General Total Debt to Total Total Debt to Total

Tax Year Bonded Debt Assessment Assessment Expenditures Expenditures
2005 5 12,202,286 $ 570,401,429 021101 $ 25842630 472101
2006 20,922,286 673,488,281 .031to0 1 27,901,352 750101
2007 22,538,317 704,561,094 .032to1 33,896,969 .665 to 1
2008 24,008,317 693,683,310 035101 37,296,867 644 o1
2009 22,521,414 728,824,170 031101 38,249,959 589101
2010 21,676,922 734,794,794 .030to 1 26,991,342 .803 10 1
2011 20,395,260 880,290,913 023101 31,320,230 651101
2012 19,054,360 864,098 668 022 to 1 31,217,154 610101
2013 21,373,996 863,349,937 .025t0 1 30,941,516 691 to 1
2014 20,237,974 868,315,105 .023t0 1 32,088,324 630 to 1
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City of Morristown
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2014 2005

Percantage of Percentage of

Total Totat
Employer Employees Rank Empioyment Employees Rank Employment
Hamblen County Dept. of Education 1,284 1 11% 1,225 3 10%
Koch Foods 1,125 2 10% 950 4 8%
MAHLE, inc. 1,006 3 9% 1,423 2 11%
Walters State Community College 743 4 6% 708 6 6%
Morristown Hamblen Heatthcare 716 5 6% 713 5 6%
JTEKT Automaotive 715 5] 6% - -
Howmet 520 7 5% 525 10 4%
Wal-Marl 432 8 4% 550 9 4%
Rich Products 402 g 3% - -
Lear Corporation 403 10 3% - -
Shelby Williams Industries, Inc. - - 675 7 5%
Toyoda TRW Automotive - - 572 8 5%
Berkline - - 1,625 1 13%
Totat 7,346 64% 8,966 1%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Education
Level In
Per Capita Years of
Fiscal Personal Personal Median Formal School Unemployement
Year Population Income Income Age Schooling  Enroflment Rate
2005 25402 § 661,950,718 $ 26,059 36.90 14.3 10,519 6.40
2006 25,716 674,119,224 26,214 40.00 141 10,513 4.60
2007 25,686 673,075,944 26,204 41.02 14.0 10,613 570
2008 26,419 695,823,622 26,338 36.00 134 10,398 7.20
2009 25,800 696,780,600 27,007 36.80 13.3 10,079 13.48
2010 28,054 896,633,894 31,961 37.30 13.0 9,532 11.20
2011 29,137 548,154,381 18,813 36.20 12.0 10,972 11.80
2012 29,369 579,097,942 19,718 35.88 13.7 9,852 13.53
2013 29,269 961,135,422 32,838 36.20 14.0 13,046 10.20
2014 29,324 955,610,512 32,588 39.80 14.5 13,136 7.70
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2005 20086 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Function
Public safety
Police:
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48
Fire stations 5 5 6 6 5] 6 3] 6 6 6
Sanitation
Collection trucks 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Highways and streets
Street {miles) 240 241 263 263 320 320 320 320 352 3521
Culture and recreation
Parks acreage 232 257 259 259 264 264 264 264 264 264
Parks 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
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City of Morristown Tennessees
Schedule of Water Rates and Number of Customers
Year Ended June 30, 2014

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Inside City Rate
Custorner charge per month $ 465 § 465 § 465 § 465 § 465 § 465 § 465 F 465 5 465 § 465
Commodity charge {per 1.000 gallons}
First 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - - -
Qver 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - - B

First 50,000 gallons 2.05 2.05 2,05 2,05 2.05 1.90 1.65 1.55 1.55 1.58
Next 50,000 gallons 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.65 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30
QOver 100,000 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.45 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10

Minimum bitl:

5/8" meter 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.45 7.75 7.95 775 7.75
3/4" meter 8.25 9.25 9.25 9.25 9.25 895 8.25 8.25 8.25 8.25
1" meter 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 9.70 9.25 9.25 9.25 9.25
1 1/2" meter 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.50 11,20 10.75 10.75 10.75 10.75
2" meter 16.00 16,00 16.00 16.00 16.00 45.70 15.25 15.25 15.25 15.2%
3" meter 61.00 61.00 61.00 G1.00 61.00 60.70 52.00 52.00 52.00 52.00
4" meter 71.00 71.00 71.00 71.00 71.00 70.70 70.00 70.00 70.00 70.00
8" meter 101.00 101.00 101.00 101.00 101.00 100.70 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
8" meter 114.30 114.30 114.30 114.30 114,30 - - - - -

Outside City rates:
Customer charge per month 4.65 4,65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65
Commedity charge (per 1,000 gallens)
First 25,000 gallons - - - - . - - _ . _
Over 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - - R

First 50,000 gallons 410 410 410 4.10 4.10 3.80 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10
Next 50,000 gallens 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.30 2.60 2.60 2.60 2860
Over 100,000 gailons 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 2.90 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
Minimum bill:

5/8" meter 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.25 10.85 10.85 10.85 10.85
3/4" meter 13.35 13.35 13.35 13.35 13.35 12.75 11.35 11.35 11.35 11.35
1" meter 14.10 44.10 14.40 14.40 14.10 13.50 12.10 1210 12.10 12.40
1 12" meter 15.60 15.60 15,60 1560 45.60 15.00 13.60 13.60 13.60 13.60
2" meter 20.10 20.10 20.10 20.10 20.10 19.50 18.10 18.10 18.10 18.10
3" meter 65.10 65.10 65.10 §3.10 65.10 64,50 63.10 63.10 63.10 63.10
4" meter 75.40 75.10 75.10 75.10 75.10 74.50 73.10 73.10 73.10 73,10
6" meter 105.10 105.10 105.10 105.10 105.10 104.50 103.10 103.10 103.10 103.10
8" meter 118.40 118.40 $18.40 118.40 118.40 - - - - -

Monthly fire protection service charge:

4" 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25,00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00
6" 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00
8" 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00
10" 400.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
12" 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 $25.00 125,00 125.00 125.00 125.00

Nurmber of Customers
Total active service 12,549 12,569 12.553 12,501 12,567 12,606 12,937 12,684 12,517 12,453
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Standard Cable:
Expanded basic
Digital basic
Digital basic + 1
Digital basic + 2
Digital basic + 4
Premium channels

Internet:
Residential
Tier 1
Tier 2
Tier 3
Tier 4
Tier 5

Commercial
Tier 1
Tier 2
Tier 3
Tier 4
Tier &
Tier 6

Telephone:
Residential
Basic Pack
Preferred Pack
Additional services
Long distance per minute

GCommercial
Access line
Business local telephone service
Additional services
Long distance rate per minute

City of Morristown Tennessee

Schedule of Monthly Broadband Rates (Last Eight Years)
Year Ended June 30, 2014

2014 2013 2012 201 2010

3 5095 § 4695 § 4595 $ 4695 § 46856
60.95 54,95 54,85 54,85 5495
69,95 63.95 B3.95 63.95 63.95
77.95 71.95 71.95 71.95 71.95
90.95 84.95 84.95 84 95 84.95

9.92-1295 9.95-12.95 9.95-12.95  9.95-42.95 9951295

34.95 34.95 34.95 34.95 34.95
39.95 39.95 39.95 39.95 39.85
74.95 74.95 44,95 59.95 59.95

- 99.95 74.95 99.95 99.95

- - 99.95-199.95 159956 159.95

44.95 T 44.95 44 95 44.95 44.95
74.95 74.95 7495 74.85 74.95
99,95 99.95 99.95 99.95 99.95
149.90 149.95 149,95 149.95 149.95
- 199.95 199.95 199.95 199.95

- 299.95 - - -
22.95 22.95 2295 22,85 22.95
25.00 25.00 2500 25.00 25.00
3.75-11.95 375-11.95 3.75-11.95 375885 3.75895
0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
25.95 25495 25.95 25.95 25.95
36.95 36.85 36.95 36.95 36.95
7.96-27.95 7.95.27.95 7.95-27.95 6,95-2595 6.95-25.95
0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Note: The Broadband System began operations in 2006.

2009

5 41.95
49.95
59.95
67.85
80.95

9.95-11.95

29.95
39.95
59.95
99.95

39.95
74.95
99.85
149.95
195.95

22.95
25.00

3.75-8.95
0.05

25.95
36.95
6.95-25 95
0.05

2008
$ 4195
49.95
59.95
67.95
B80.95
9.95-11.95

29.95
39.95
59.95
99.95

39.95
74.95
99.95
149.95
199.95

22.95
26.00
3.75-8.95
0.05

25.95
36,95
6.95-25.95
0.05

2007

§ 4195
49.95
59.05
87,95
80.95

9.95-11.95

29.95
39.95
58.95
99.95

39.95
74.95
99.95
149.95

22.95
25.00
3.75-8.85
0.056

25.85
36.95
6.95-25.95
0.05

2006

§ 4195
48.95
59.95
67.95
80.95

9.85-11.95

29.95
39.95
59.95
99.95

39.95
74.95
99.95
149.95

22,95
27.95
6.95-8.95
0.05

26.95
39.95
6.95-7.95
0.05
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AWWA Free Water Audit Software: WAS 5.0

Water Audit Report for: [Morristown Utiiities Gommission (0000474) ]
BN Reporting Year:| 2014 [ 7/2013-6/2014 |
Please enler dala in the while cells below. Whers available, metered values should be used; if values ara ur i please a value. Indicale your confidence in lhe accuracy of the

input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to oblain a description of the grades
All volumes to be entered as: MILLION GALLONS (US) PER YEAR
To select the correct data grading for each inpul, determine the highest grade where

the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for thal grade and all grades below it. Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments
WATER SUPPLIED <=--------- Enler grading in column 'E' and 'J' - ~*  Pent: Value:
Volume from own sources: Il IEM [ = | 3,180.004| MG/Yr 2.00% Q | MGIYr
Water imported: [l Il | e | MGHYT ® O MGIYr
Water exported: JES IEM | ve| MGIYr ® O | MGIYr
Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: | 3,127.455| Morvr Enter positive % or value for over-registration
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION = Click here: HEM
Billed matered: I IEM [ 0] 2,820.310| MG/Yr for help using option
Billed unmetered: | na MGIYr brtonshalow
Unbilled metered: [ 10] 32.351| MGIYr Pent: ___ Value:
Unbilled unmatarad:- 39.093| MG 1.25% _ MGIYr
Default option selected for Unbllled d - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed A
Usa buttons to sel
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: __ il | 2,891.755) Mo/vr e
supplied
OR
WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 235.700( mGryr Jalte
Anpparent L osses Pent: v__ Value:

nt:
Unauthorized consumption: I HEN MG/Yr ‘Ql.l_ MG/

Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 Is applied but not displayed

Customer metering inaccuracies: I MG 1o | 28.815| Menvr 1.00%] (@) ( MGHYr
Systemalic data handling errors: IEN IEH 7.051| MGrYr | 0.25%| =] |MGIYr

Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 Is applied but not displayed

Apparent Losses: 43.684| MG/Yr

Real Losse u | Real Losses or CARL
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: e 192.016] MG/Yr
WATER LOSSES: [ 236.700 Moy
NON-REVENUE WATER

NON-REVENUE WATER: Al 307.145] MG

= Waler Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered

SYSTEM DATA
Length of mains: IEM 6] 275.0{ miles
Number of active AND inactive servica connections: [E3l L6 | 13,800
Service cannection density: 50| cann./mile main
Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? (length of service fine, beyond the properly
Averaga length of customer service line: boundary, thal is the responsibility of the utility)

Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied
Average aperaling pressure: [EI IEM [ < | psl

COST DATA
Total annual cost of operating water system: Il [ 10] $3,729,738| $/Year
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses); I Il [ s | $2.05||$/1000 gallons (US) |
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): [ 10] $356.17| $/Milllon gallons  [_ise Customer Retall Unit Cost to value real losses

WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:

*** YOUR SCORE IS: 86 out of 100 ***
A weighted scale for the componenls of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score

PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:

Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be Improved by addressing the following components:
|__1: Volume from own sources |
[ 2:Cust retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses) 1
[ 3: Unauthorized ption |

Amerlcan Waler Works Assoalatian!
_ Reporting Worksheet | Coprianiz0l4 AllRighis Rosteyed,
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago
June 30, 2014

2014 2005
Percentage Percentage
of Totatl City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Rank Value
Mahle $ 24,402,240 1 2.81% $ 26,895,420 1 4.79%
Toyoda-TRW 22,997,629 2 2.65% 20,527,438 2 3.65%
Vifan 18,979,302 3 2.19% 9,928,133 5 1.77%
Ctics USA, Inc. 13,524,057 4 1.56% 0.00%
Tuff Torg 11,844,057 5 1.36% 10,396,782 4 1.85%
Meritor/Rockwell 10,987,537 6 1.27% 5,741,484 9 1.02%
CBL Marristown Ltd. 10,186,960 7 1.17% 9,564,280 6 1.70%
Lear 12,727 127 8 1.47% 9,101,824 7 1.62%
NCR 7260617 9 0.84%
Team Technologies 7085157 10 0.82%
Berkline . 12,694,790 3 2.26%
Bellsouth 8,126 414 8 1.45%
Shelby Williams 5,460,952 10 0.97%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Debt Capacity Information
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2014

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

General Revenue Total Percentage of
Fiscal Per Capita Obligation Bonded Primary Personal
Year Population Income Bonds Debt Government Income Per Capita
2005 25402 § 26059 § 12202286 $ 35023408 § 47225694 0.06% $ 1,859
2006 25716 26,214 20,922,286 48,548,085 69,470,371 0.04% 2,701
2007 25,686 26,204 22,538,317 48,583,584 71,121,901 0.04% 2,769
2008 26,419 26,338 24,008,317 57,350,826 81,359,143 0.03% 3,080
2009 25,800 27,007 22,521,414 62,632,314 85,153,728 0.03% 3,301
2010 28,054 31,961 21,676,922 70,536,488 92,213,410 0.03% 3,287
2011 29,137 18,813 20,395,260 67,736,119 88,131,379 0.02% 3,025
2012 29,369 19,718 19,054,360 66,678,349 85,732,709 0.02% 2,919
2013 29,269 32,838 21,373,996 94,873,935 116,247,931 0.03% 3,972
2014 29,324 32,588 < 20,237,974 106,117,010 126,354,984 0.03% 4,308
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Debt Capacity Information
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2014

Percent of Net
Actual Value General General Obligation Bonded

Fiscal of Taxable Bonded Debt to Debt
Year Poputation Property Debt Actual Value Per Capita
2005 25402 $ 1,706,865,190 $ 12,202,285 071% 3% 480
2006 25716 2,030,459,639 20,922,286 1.03% 814
2007 25,686 2,130,508,894 22,538,317 1.06% 877
2008 26,419 2,257,282 643 24,008,317 1.06% 909
2009 25,800 2,377.490,324 22521414 0.95% 873
2010 25,800 2,776,600,762 21,676,922 0.78% 840
2011 29,137 2,729,853,556 20,395,260 0.75% 700
2012 29,369 2,722 855,361 19,054,360 0.70% 649
2013 29,269 2,720,476,644 21,373,996 0.79% 730

2014 29,324 2,736,636,423 20,237,974 0.74% 690




City of Morristown, Tennessee
City Government Employees by Function/Program
June 30, 2014

Employees as of June 30,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Function/Program
General government
Mayor and council 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
City administration & staff 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4
Finance 6.5 6.5 55 6 B 7 7 7 7
Purchasing 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
infoermation technology 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Human resources 2.5 t.h 1.5 2 2 2 2 2 2
Legal services 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Planning 4.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 7.3 5.3 7.4 7.4 7.5
Engineering 4.1 3.1 3.1 341 3.1 3.3 39 34 3.375
Inspections 5 5 4 4 5 5 5 5
Police
Supervision 5 5 6 6 6 5 5 5 5
Patrol B5 65 654 63 63 67 70 B3 62
investigations 15 15 15 15 15 15 13 13 14
Codes enforcement 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 t 1
Vice 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 4 1
Narcotics 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4
Fire
Supervision B 6 6 6 6 6 6 4 4
Firefighting 79 79 79 81 81 84 84 87 85
Prevention & inspection 1 t 1 1 1 2 2 1 1
Public works
Supervision 2 1.83 1.83 1.5 15 1.5 1.5 t.5 1.5
Buildings & grounds 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 5] 6
Equipment shop 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Repairs & maintenance 9 9 2] 9 9 10 10 10 10
Street lights & signs 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2
Brush & snow 10.7 10.7 10.7 9 9 13 13 14 13
Communication shop 2 1.65 1.65 2 2 2 2 2 1
Storms drains & ways 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4
Street cleaning 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
Parks and recreation 17 17 17 17 18 20 20 21 20
Sewer 16 17.98 17.98 26.9 26.9 259 257 22.7 22.625
Storm water 5.1 5.44 5.44 7.2 7.2 7 6.5 0 0
Solid waste 12.5 12 i2 12 13 13 13 13 13
Total 259.7 302 299 310 314 328 329 325 321

Note: This information was not available for years prior to 2006.
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CrRAINE, THOMPSON & JONES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
225 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
F.Q. Box 1779
SUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1779
423-5B6-7650

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morristown, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown, Tennessee,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City of Morristown, Tennessee’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 21, 2014. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
Morristown Ultilities Commission, as described in our report- on City of Morristown, Tennessee's financial
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial
reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internat Gontrol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Morristown, Tennessee’s
internal control over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A maferiaf weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. The finding is identified as 14-1.

JAMEE W. CRAINE, CPA
GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA
MIRA J. CRAINE, CPA

HiIrAM H. JONES, CPA
TERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Morristown, Tennessee’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Morristown, Tennessee’s Response to Findings

City of Morristown, Tennessee’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Morristown, Tennessee’s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinicn on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

am, Jﬁﬂn,aww Gf(gm! f?ﬁ.

Morristown, Tennessee
November 21, 2014
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CRAINE, THOMPSON & JoONES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
225 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
P.O. Box 1778
SUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SGQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1778
423-586-7650

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morristown, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Morristown, Tennessee’'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circufar A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of City of Morristown, Tennessee’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. City of
Morristown, Tennessee’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Morristown, Tennessee's major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Morristown, Tennessee’s compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Morristown, Tennessee's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Morristown, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2014.

JAMES W. CRAINE, CPA

GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA T HIR;M‘:AJONES, g:A
MiRA J. CRAINE, CPA ERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA
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Report on Internal Control Cver Compliance

Management of City of Morristown, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internat
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered City of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiericy in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit atiention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Morristown, Tennessee
November 21, 2014
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

June 30, 2014
Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statemenis

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:;
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337

{dentification of major programs:
US Department of Transportation — Transportation Planning
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and B programs
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee
Section It - Financial Statement Findings:
Finding 14-1

Condition: Payment of a travel advance was duplicated.

ungualified
yes
yes

no

no
none reported

ungualified

no

20.205

$300,000

no

Criteria: A completed and authorized travel request form is submitted prior to an advance being given.

Cause of condition: The first payment was split into two checks (check #145916 for $762.72 for mileage and
check #145915 for $239.00 for meals) with both being paid on 6/6/2014. The second payment was made on one
check (check #146085 for $1,001.72) dated 6/13/14. All travel advance payments are processed from a copy of
the fravel advance form submitted to accounts payable. The original is kept for reconciliation of the trip and as

support for credit card payments (for the lodging portion}.

Potential effect of condition: Payment duplication causes expenditures to be overstated.

Recommendation: Payments shouid be made from the original travel request form and in one check.

Management's response: Management agrees with the finding. Procedures are now in place to ensure duplicate
payments will not occur. These procedures include documenting on the paperwork of when checks are written.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Disposition of Prior Year Findings
June 30, 2014

FYE 6/30/2013
Finding 13-1
Condition: The payroll clerk used unearned vacation and compensatory time.

This condition was resolved at June 30, 2014.
FYE 6/30/2010
Finding 10-1:
Condition: As part of the audit, we prepared the financial statements, including the government-wide presentation
and related notes from information provided by the City. Under current professional standards, the City is
responsible for the internal control process which includes the preparation of year-end financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the madified accrual basis of accounting. Some
adjustments were necessary to properly record and adjust transactions. These included investments,
receivables, payables, revenue, and expenditures, and government-wide adjustments.

This condition was resolved at June 30, 2014.
Finding 10-5:
Caondition: The City of Morristown does not have formal written policies and procedures in place to document its
accounting system, internal control sfructure, and the assignment of employee responsibilities to effectively

capture and report the City's financial information.

This condition was resolved at June 30, 2014.
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